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TRANSFORMING FOR GROWTH

TRANSFORMING FOR GROWTH
To position the company for sustained success and
growth for the foreseeable future and to better align
the company with its business strategy and vision,
AGTL management is focused on transforming its
business personnel, processes, and technology, to
help the company, compete more effectively,
become more efficient, maximize company’s
potential and to create additional value of our
shareholders
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Company Profile
Incorporated in June 1983, privatized in
December 1991, Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited,
the subsidiary company of Al-Futtaim group
of Dubai, is a story of rollicking success.
With consistent corporate achievements,
the company is recognized for corporate
excellence
and
“Best
Corporate
Performance”.
With its head office in Karachi, the AGTL
plant at Dera Ghazi Khan, some 700 kms
away from Karachi, manufactures New
Holland (Fiat) tractors in technical
collaboration with CNHI - Case New
Holland, the Number One manufacturer of
agricultural tractors in the world. The AGTL
plant, an icon of engineering dynamics
operates on high efficiency. With Quality
Control and Quality Assurance, quality
improvement systems exist at every level.
One of our mission statement reads: “Our
most enduring competitive edge is the
quality of tractors”. Robust and sturdy, the
company’s products of 55, 65, 75 and 85
HP, carry a local content of 92% - the
highest in the country.
Monitoring the efficiency and effectiveness
of each production process is the key to our
success. Effort is made to make each
process efficient to drive down the cost per
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tractor. Competent material and plant
utilization has resulted in the company’s
core strategy of being the lowest cost
producer of quality products. AGTL’s
produced tractors in all hp ranges are
therefore the cheapest quality tractors in
the whole world.
Documentation of the entire manufacturing
process
and
improved
quality
measurement being our priority, Al-Ghazi
was the first automobile company in
Pakistan to earn the ISO-9000 certification.
With yearly audits the company is now
registered
for
ISO-9001:2015
upto
September 15, 2021.
AGTL products being a household name
with the farmer community, our product
profile reflects consumer needs. Price and
convenience being the customer’s first
priority the company’s objectives include:
focus on all target markets and focus on
customers. As many dealers in every nook
and cranny of the country, and over 3000
mechanical workshops dot the country to
work as customer care centers.
AGTL name is synonymous with stability,
brand strength,customer loyalty and
profitability. The Top Stock of the automobile

industry
of
Pakistan
with
market
capitalization of over hundred times,
dividends tell our real story. To the
shareholders we give returns which are
almost un-matched in Pakistan’s corporate
world.
At AGTL we believe that effective individuals
make a difference; effective teams make a
business. Of all the things that we have built
the most admired is our teamwork. AGTL’s
human talent does not depreciate with
time. AGTL workers are happy workers. AGTL
values the stake holders, customers,
employees and the investors. The
management works to ensure that all
supply
chain
associates,
dealers,
shareholders and employees share in the
company’s growth and prosperity.
Al-Futtaim’s flagship in Pakistan with over
93% foreign shareholding, Al-Ghazi Tractors

Limited is a text book example of good
corporate governance, conforming to all of
the Corporate Governance Reforms
promulgated by the government.
AGTL’s long list of accolades received year
after year include Top Companies Award of
the Karachi Stock Exchange, Corporate
Excellence Award of the Management
Association of Pakistan, Best Presented
Annual Report Awards of ICAP, Best
Calendar Awards of NCCA, Excellence
Award on Human Resources and Industrial
Relations and Excellence Award in
Productivity from the Employer’s Federation
of Pakistan.
AGTL’s Vision Statement is categoric: “To
make AGTL a symbol of success.” This sets
the direction as well as the destination in
sight and each of the employee lives to
achieve the company’s Mission.
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Business Model
Our Capitals:

Our Processes

Financial Capital:
Equity: Rs. 2.3 Billion
Assets: Rs. 5.2 Billion

Procurement and acquisition
of local & imported raw
material

Manufactured Capital:
State-of-the-art Tractor
assembling facility
30k per annum production
capacity

Storage and Binning

Human Capital:
402 Employees
People centered culture
Strong governance

Natural Capital:
Water, energy & environment
conservation
Waste water treatment plant

Production of Sheet
metal Components

Intellectual Capital
Company's knowledge base,
Product manufacturing
capabilities
Well equipped reporting tools
Corporate Reputation
Brand (CNHi)

Social & Relationship
Capital:
Relations with customers,
regulators, communities & other
stake holders
Vast network of dealers,
distributors & end-users
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Assembling of Tractors

Value Creation for
our Stakeholders

Customer/Suppliers
Pre-delivery Inspection
of Tractors

Customer satisfaction
Trust of vendors
Growing network of vendors,
dealers & customers

Shareholders:
Transfer of Tractors to Dealers

Delivered strong and healthy returns
for shareholders
Return on equity: 59%

Employees:
Talent nourishment and growth
Reward high performance and invest in
attracting, developing and retaining
our people
Remuneration & Benefits: Rs. 586 Million

Tractors delivered to
customers

Communities:
Investment in communities to support
communities uplift.
Refer to page no. 127 of CSR section
for our work on communities.

Governing Bodies & Regulators:
After Sale Service

Compliance with all the regulatory
requirements
Contributed to national ex-chequer
Rs. 413 Million
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Our Journey So Far
1983
1984
February:
Auxiliary Plant,
Start of Production
at D.G. Khan Plant

1991

June 26:
September:
Date of Incorporation Commencement of
Operation

1985
April:
Main
Manufacturing
Plant

December:
Take Over
by Al-Futtaim

1992
April:
New Engine
Assembly Line

2006
April:
Sheet Metal Plant for
stamping and
agricultural
implements

2011
March:
New Engine
Testing facility

2013
April:
Assembly Line
for Generators

2015
June:
New Head Office Tractor House,
Karachi

2017
December:
Quality Assurance
Lab, Plant
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Geographical Presence
Gilgit Agency

Tribal Areas
Punjab

Balouchistan

Sindh
Head Office : Karachi
Plant: Dera Ghazi Khan
Marketing Centres: Lahore,
Multan, Islamabad, Sukkur,
Dera Ghazi Khan
DEALERSHIP NETWORK
For customized customer satisfaction, AGTL has dotted the whole country with a large
dealer network, and tractor workshop, in every nook and cranny of the country.
Annual Report 2020
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Established in the 1930s as a trading business, Al-Futtaim is one of
the most progressive regional business houses headquartered in
Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
Al-Futtaim operates through more than 200 companies across
sectors as diverse as commerce, industry and services, and
employs in excess of 42,000 people across the UAE, Bahrain,
Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Egypt, Pakistan, Sri Lanka,
Syria, Singapore and Europe. Entrepreneurship and rigorous
customer focus have enabled Al-Futtaim to grow its business by
responding to the changing needs of the customers and
societies in which it operates. Al-Futtaim is committed to offering
customers an unrivalled choice of the world’s best brands from
the USA, UK, Japan, Sweden, France, Germany and Switzerland
(from sectors as diverse with each other as automotive, retail, real
estate and finance). Al-Futtaim’s exceptional standards of
customer service and after sales support is the reason some of
the world’s most admired and innovative brands trust Al-Futtaim
with their own reputation and commercial success.
Structured into seven operational divisions; automotive,
electronics, engineering and technologies, retail, financial
services, general services, real estate and joint ventures,
Al-Futtaim maintains a decentralized approach, giving individual
businesses flexibility and versatility to maintain a competitive
stance. The decades-long experience allows Al-Futtaim to
embrace and foster new, forward-thinking business practices and
seamlessly blend those into corporate DNA and people-first
philosophy whilst upholding the value of integrity within a spirit of
collaboration.
This benefits employees, providing a clearly defined work culture
where individuals are empowered with authority and responsibility
for their work.
Al-Futtaim is the holding company of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited with
50.02% shares.
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CNH Industrial is a global leader in capital goods that implements
design, manufacturing, distribution, commercial and financial activities
in international markets.
CNH Industrial is an international front-runner in the capital goods sector
that designs, produces and sells agricultural and construction
equipment (tractors, combines, excavators), wheel loaders, trucks,
commercial vehicles, buses and specialty vehicles (including
firefighting and civil protection vehicles), in addition to a broad portfolio
of powertrain applications. CNHI’s symbolism is that they design,
manufacture and sell ‘machines for work’.
Across its 12 brands, 67 manufacturing plants, 56 research and
development centers and a workforce of more than 63,000 people,
CNH Industrial is present in 180 countries giving it a unique competitive
position.
The Group has the flexibility to pursue the most advantageous strategic
options and capitalize on opportunities for growth and consolidation
consistent with our ambitions for it to become a leader in the sector.
CNHI holds 43.17% shares of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited.
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Manufacturing Plant
R&D Center

North
America

Manufacturing Plant
+R&D Center

Europe
South
America
AMEA
CNHi Global Footprint
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Our Vision
To Make AGTL a Symbol of
Success
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Our Mission
With AGTL’s name being synonymous
with stability, profitability, brand
strength and customer loyalty, AGTL’s
mission is to retain market leadership
as the lowest cost producer of the
highest quality products – the most
enduring competitive edge being
the quality of our tractors. With
corporate virtue, AGTL’s mission is to
be a text book case example of
good Corporate Governance and
through
Corporate
Social
Responsibility
create
mutually
beneficial relationships between the
Company, Stakeholders and the
Community.
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Values & Ethical Principle
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is a public
limited company with 93.19% foreign
shareholding. The Company with its
superior performance is recognized
by all stakeholders as economically
rewarding to all parties,
acknowledged as being ethically,
socially and environmentally
responsible, welcomed by the
communities, businesses, customers
in which it operates. It facilitates
economic, human resources and
community development within a
stable operating environment.
The Directors believe that they can
make a difference within their
sphere of influence. Thus it
envisaged that:

•

The Company should create a business
environment, which instigates against
bribery and corruption and refrain from
participation in any corrupt business
practices.

•

The Company should maintain good
relations with stakeholders including
contractors, suppliers and other business
activities.

•

The Company should aspire for stability
and continuous improvement within the
operating environment.

•

The Company should provide protection
of environment.

•

The Company should promote
community efforts as good corporate
citizens.

•

The Company should take a leadership
role through establishment of ethical
business principles.

•

•

That while reflecting cultural diversity, the
Company should do business consistent
with the requirements of laws and
regulations in Pakistan.

The Company should ensure consistency
with labour laws, standards, ensure
health and safety of workers and their
rights.

•

The Company should promote training
and human resource development as
an engine for growth with particular
reference to the policy on succession
planning.

•

The Company should show ethical
leadership.

•

The Company should facilitate the
achievement of sound financial results
and a fair sharing of economic benefits.

•

The Company must have open, honest
and transparent relationships, which are
considered critical to the Company’s
success.

The Company has established a defined
code of ethics and business practices which
is signed by all directors as well as
employees of the Company.
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Corporate Focus
To achieve evolution through continuous change
– the deliverables being: to pursue LEAN
MANAGEMENT: to eliminate all activities which
don’t add value; to eliminate waste; to reduce
costs; to focus on all target markets; customer
focus and to continuously add customer care
centres to give fillip to mechanization of farming
in the country.

Strategic Planning
With Company’s Vision that sets the destination in
sight; the Company’s Mission, which is stirring,
challenging, believable, and evolved through
consensus; Goals, Objectives, Action Plans, Roles
and Responsibilities clearly defined, Strategic
Planning at Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited aligns the
actionable vision of the Company to reach
optimal performance.
Sound business plans are outlined, brainstormed
and developed to coordinate strategies for
overall success of the Company.
With disciplined efforts to produce fundamental
decisions and actions that shape and guide the
Company with focus on the future, Strategic
Planning at AGTL provides the best way to
respond to circumstances of the Company’s
environment,
its
resources,
and
thus
incorporating them into being consciously
responsive to a dynamic changing environment.
Strategic Planning at Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
supports strategic thinking and leads to strategic
management – the basis for an effective
organization.

19

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Annual Report 2020

20

Board of Directors

Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke

Mr. Raheel Asghar

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram

Chairman & Non-Executive Director

CEO & Executive Director

CFO & Executive Director

Mr. Schwendtke is currently
holding the position of Senior
International MD at Al Futtaim
Automotive,
United
Arab
Emirates. He began his working
career in 1994 in Germany and
has acquired a wide range of
experience in the automotive
sector, financial services, fleet
management, logistics, and
diversified trading industries in
various
multinational
companies.

He has over 25 years of
experience in the automotive
industry in UK and in Pakistan. Mr.
Raheel Asghar started his career
in 1994 with Honda UK
Manufacturing in Swindon, UK
where he gained experience in
production
management,
project
management
and
production engineering. Raheel
headed various departments at
Honda before moving to
Pakistan in 2007 where he joined
Indus Motor Company, which is
the sole manufacturer of Toyota
products in Pakistan. Whilst at
Toyota, he headed many
functions
and
performed
various roles including Director
Sales & Marketing and most
recently Senior Director Plant
Operations.

Mr.
Malik
Ehtisham
was
appointed as Director on the
Board in December, 2019. He
was subsequently appointed as
Chief Financial Officer and as
member of Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee in
2020. He is a seasoned Senior
Finance Executive with a career
spanning 17 years in Finance
with strong emerging market
experience. He joined Al-Futtaim
Group in 2012 and has been
working at various Senior
Finance & Leadership positions
independently handling high
profile Automotive Projects for
the Group. Over his career span
he has worked with various
consultancy firms including PwC
and KPMG.

Prior to joining Al Futtaim, Mr.
Schwendtke was the Senior
Managing Director and Group
Chief Financial Officer at Abdul
Latif Jameel Saudi Arabia and
held Chief Financial Officer and
Finance Director positions in
various Mercedes-Benz entities
in South Africa, Australia,
Singapore, UK and Germany.
Mr. Schwendtke holds a Master
Degree from the University of
Würzburg, Germany.
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Mr. Raheel Asghar holds a
degree in Engineering from
University of Cambridge, UK and
has
attended
various
management
programmes
including
the
Advanced
Management
Program
at
Wharton Business School, USA.

He is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and holds a post
graduate degree in Managerial
Economics.

Mr. Sakib Eltaff

Mr. Shehzad Naqvi

Mr. Shahid Shehbaz Toor

Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sakib Eltaff joined the
automotive division of the Al
Futtaim Group in 2008 and is
currently the Senior General
Manager Finance of the
international businesses. He has
over 25 years of experience
across a variety of industries
having previously worked in
financial
services,
manufacturing and trading
businesses
in
various
multinational companies.

Shehzad has over 30 years of
experience
in
international
financial services. For 18 of
these years he has held Country
or Regional CEO positions,
primarily in Citibank and ABN
Amro/ RBS. He has held Country
Head
or
Regional
Head
positions in Pakistan, Singapore,
Asia Pacific Region, Middle East
Region and the UK. He has
served on the Boards of several
local
and
international
companies over the years. He is
a graduate of the London
School of Economics.

Have more than 35 years of
experience in the Tractor
manufacturing industry in areas
pertaining to Management,
Development,
Production,
Quality
Assurance,
Project
Management, Supply Chain
Management, etc. Served as
Director Technical at Millat
Tractors Limited, CEO at Millat
Equipment Limited as well as
Mannan Shahid Forgings (Abraaj
Capital UAE Group Company).

Mr. Sakib Eltaff holds a masters
degree from the Oxford Brookes
University and is a fellow of the
Association
of
Chartered
Certified
Accountants
of
England and a member of the
Chartered
Professional
Accountants of Canada.

Graduated with a degree in
Mechanical Engineering from
Kingston University, UK. Have
attended various professional
training courses in Pakistan and
Abroad
in
institutions
like
Ashraigh
School
of
Management
UK,
Perkins
Engines,
Massey
Ferguson
Tractors UK, AOTS Japan,
Pakistan
Institute
of
Management, Lahore University
of
Management
Sciences,
Pakistan Institute of Quality
Control.etc.
Annual Report 2020
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Board of Directors

Ms. Farah Qureshi

Mr. Andrea Trabacchin

Independent Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Farah Qureshi has over 25 years of experience
in Corporate Governance, Internal Control,
Accounting, Financial Reporting, Mergers and
Acquisitions, Project feasibilities, Banking and
Financial
arrangements,
Legal,
Company
Secretariat and IT. She has served as Company
Secretary on the Board of Jahangir Siddiqui & Co.
Ltd., a listed company in financial services. Ms.
Qureshi has also served on the Board of Network
Microfinance Bank Ltd. (subsidiary of Jahangir
Siddiqui & Co. Ltd.) and taxation subcommittee of
the Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce
and Industry. Presently providing consulting services
in the areas of accounting, Finance, IT systems,
corporate governance, internal controls, preparing
projections and feasibilities, banking and financial
arrangements. Also, she is serving on the Board of
First UDL Modaraba as Director.

Mr. Andrea Trabacchin was appointed on the
Board as a Non-Executive Director. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee. He joined CNH
Industrial Group in 2002. Currently he is working at
CNH International SA in Lugano, Switzerland as
Chief Financial Officer of High Growth Markets
AMEA (Asia, Middle East and Africa) and ANZ.

Ms. Farah Qureshi is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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Mr. Andrea Trabacchin holds a master degree in
Business & Economics from the Commercial
University Luigi Bocconi in Milan, Italy. He is Recipient
of European Union scholarship for the Erasmus
Exchange Program from School of Economics,
Stockholm, Sweden.

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne

Mr. Matthieu Jean-Marie, Bernard Séjourné

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vincent is the Brand Leader for New Holland
Agriculture Asia Pacific Region. He initially joined
CNH in 1995. Within CNH he acquired a significant
experience in the CIS, AME and Asia Pacific
markets.

He joined CNHi in March 2002 covering several
sales & marketing positions in the African continent.
He also joined TurkTraktor, the JV of CNHi in Turkey,
where he was Marketing Director. He then joined
the Asia Pacific Region, where he was successively
appointed as Product Marketing and later as Brand
Leader for Case IH. Since January 2019, he is the
Brand Leader New Holland & Case IH for the Asia,
Middle East and Africa Region.

Since 2004 he has been posted as Business
Director in Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Vincent de
Lassagne has been appointed on the Board of
Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd from October 23, 2015.
Mr. Vincent holds an Agronomist Engineer degree &
Masters in Marketing & Sales from the HEC University.

Mr. Séjourné holds a master degree in Business
Administration from SDA Bocconi Milan, Italy and
Master in Engineering from CESTI-Paris (newly
named SUPMECA, Superior Centre of Study in
Industrial Techniques - Mechanical Engineering
School) with a major in Supply Chain Management.
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Organizational Chart

Board of Directors

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

Audit
Committee

Chief
Executive Officer

Company
Secretary

Legend

Chief
Internal Auditor
General Manager Plant

Chief Financial Officer

General Manager Technical

General Manager Marketing

General Manager Supply
Chain & Procurement

Deputy General Manager
Quality Assurance

Head of Human Recource
& Administration

Deputy General Manager
After Sales Services

Functional Reporting
Administrative Reporting

*Number of employees as at Dec 31, 2020 and average number of employees for the year including factory employees
are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements
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Significants Events 2020
Feb

The Board of Directors (BOD) meeting was held to review and
approved audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31st 2019. (Feb)

May

BOD Meeting was held in the month of May for the approval of
1st quarter financial results

June

Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the company was held
on 15-June-2020 where distribution of cash dividend of Rs. Nil per
share was approved.

July

BOD Meeting was held in the month of July for the approval of
half year financial results.

Sept

BOD Meeting was held in the month of September for other than
financial results.

Oct

AGTL was awarded 4th position in "Best Corporate Report
Award" in Engineering & Auto sector by joint committee of ICAP
and ICMAP (Oct)

Q4

Oct

BOD Meeting was held in the month of October for the approval
of 3rd quarter financial results.

Q4

Dec

Corporate briefing session was held in the month of December.

Q4

Dec

Q1

BOD Meeting for the approval of annual budget 2021 was held in
the month of December.

Q2
Q2
Q3
Q3
Q4
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Position in Value Chain
Our ability to enrich peoples life with quality products depends on the quality
of input raw material, efficient production cycle, vigilant pre delivery
inspections supported by our dealers coordination and finest after sales
services for end users. The process is further augmented through sustainable
relationship with suppliers, collaborated environment for employees with
strong leadership and using Information Technology platform.

Storage and Binning
Raw material Acquisition
Imported Components

Locally Procured Components

After Sales Services

Delivery to Customers
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Assembling of
Tractors -production
of the sheet metal
components and
final assembly

Pre-delivery
Inspection
of Tractors

Transfer of Tractors to Dealers

The company procures high quality of raw
material from its local and imported vendors
and assembles NEW HOLLAND tractors as per
international standards to meet customer
demand.
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Messages for
Stakeholders
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Directors’ Report
The Directors of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘AGTL’) are pleased to present the
annual report together with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.
Operating Results

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Sales
Gross Profit
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
Total income

11,935,172
2,770,502
1,927,907
(578,250)
1,349,657
34,748
1,384,405

13,992,388
2,544,716
1,348,524
(370,872)
977,652
(52,188)
925,464

DIVIDEND & GENERAL RESERVE
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board in its meeting held on May 4, 2021, has proposed a final
cash dividend of Rs. 21.39 per share amounting to Rs. 1,240 million.
Board has decided to transfer unappropriated profit to general reserves of Rs. 1,049 millions.
EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Basic earnings per share were Rs. 23.28 in 2020 compared to Rs. 16.87 in 2019.
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
The Company sold 12,142 tractors during the year 2020 as compared to 15,719 tractors sold in the year
2019. There were various factors contributing to lower sales volume of the year as compared to that of
previous year. Weakening purchasing power of farmers, persistent economic slowdown and depressed
automobile / tractor market remain the most significant issues. Government did not announce any support till
the end of 2020 affecting the sales in the year. Sales volume deteriorated against the backdrop of
off-season, worsening water crisis which was affecting the farmers’ economic health, various fiscal and tax
measures by the Government and a general slowdown of the overall economic activity due to the COVID-19
lockdowns. The deterioration of the currency was another factor contributing to increased prices affecting
affordability and volumes. Despite all of the above, the Company continued its efforts of engaging with
customers and ensuring quality improvements and efficiencies.

Profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 at Rs. 1,9 billion is 43% higher than the previous year.
The gross margin remained under pressure owing to afore-said factors for lower sales volume and cost of
inflation caused by the steep rise of metal prices and additional government levies applied at import stage
on raw materials and CKD components. Further, liquidity challenges being faced last year have been
reduced through efficient equity management. However, company is incurring substantial financial cost due
to delayed sales tax refunds by the authorities amounting to Rs 921 million approximately. Bank lending and
corresponding financial cost has reduced by 63% from Rs. 398 million to 146 million due to efficient payables
management.
Out of the pre-tax profit of Rs 1.9 billion, an amount of Rs 578 million was charged on account of corporate
tax. The after-tax profit thus stands at Rs 1.3 billion translating into earnings per share (EPS) of Rs 23.28 per
share.
“Key Operating and Financial Data” and the “Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Statement”
highlighted in the Annual Report testify to the strength of the Company.
AGTL has been awarded with Best Corporate Reports Awards 2019 yet again by the Joint Committee of ICAP
and ICMAP. AGTL annual report rank fourth in the Engineering & Auto sector of Pakistan. AGTL also received the
coveted Corporate Excellence Certificate under the industrial category from the Management Association
of Pakistan yet again. The announcement of the award recognizes companies’ excellent financial and
managerial performance, based on comprehensive criteria including capital efficiency, profitability,
free-float of shares, investor relations, and compliance with listing of companies and securities regulations.
Appropriations
The financial results for the year under review are as follows:
Unappropriated profit – brought forward
Total income for the year
Transfer of unappropriated profit to general reserve
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriation:
Final dividend paid for the year 2019:
Rs. 0 per share (2018: Rs. 9 per share)
Interim dividend paid for the year 2020:
Rs. 0 per share (2019: Rs 15 per share)
Unappropriated profit – carried forward

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

613,896
1,384,405
(1,049,000)
949,301

1,079,576
925,464
2,005,040

-

(521,681)

949,301

(869,463)
613,896

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
The Chairman’s review included in the Annual Report deals with the nature of business, performance of the
company, explanation of significant deviations from last year, future prospects and uncertainties.
BOARD STRUCTURE
The term of the previous Board of Directors was expired on December 5th, 2020 but considering the annual
closing and other restrictions imposed by the pandemic an extension from SECP was obtained to hold the
fresh elections of Directors in March. An EOGM of members was called and held on March 3rd, 2021 at
Moven Pick Hotel, Karachi to hold the voting for the Election of Directors. The consent letters were sought from
interested members to contest the Election of Directors. EOGM unanimously approved:
•

Update in the Articles of Association of the Company to increase the minimum number of Directors to
meet statutory guidelines of new Code of Corporate Governance to have at least 1/3rd of the Board
consisting of Independent Directors

•

Appointment of all contested members as directors

New Board now constitute the following Diversity:

Gender Diversity on Board:
a) Male
b) Female

9
1

Functional Diversity on Board:
a) Independent Director
b) Non-Executive Directors
c) Executive Directors

3
5
2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & COMMITTEES
The names of directors and members of board committees are as follows:
i. Independent Directors

ii. Non-Executive Directors

iii. Executive Directors

Ms. Farah Qureshi
Mr. Shehzad Naqvi
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor
Mr. Bernd Schwendtke - Chairman
Mr. Sakib Eltaff
Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin
Mr. Matthieu Sejourné
Mr. Raheel Asghar - CEO
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram - CFO

The Board has formed the following committees:
a) Audit Committee
i. Independent Director
ii. Non-Executive Directors

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
i. Non-Executive Directors

ii. Executive Directors

c) Technical Committee
i. Non-Executive Directors

ii. Executive Directors

Ms. Farah Qureshi – Chairman
Mr. Shehzad Naqvi
Mr. Bernd Schwendtke
Mr. Sakib Eltaff
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin

Mr. Bernd Schwendtke - Chairman
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin
Ms. Farah Qureshi
Mr. Raheel Asghar – CEO
Malik Ehtisham Ikram – CFO

Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor - Chairman
Mr. Matthieu Sejourné
Ms. Vincent De Lassagne
Mr. Raheel Asghar – CEO
Malik Ehtisham Ikram – CFO

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the
Code of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration.
The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except independent directors for
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attending the meetings. In order to retain the best talent, the Company’s remuneration policies are structured
in line with prevailing industry trends and business practices. For detailed and numerical information on
remuneration of Directors and CEO in this annual report, please refer notes to the Financial Statements.
REVIEW OF CEO’s PERFORMANCE
The performance of the CEO is formally appraised through the evaluation system which is based on
quantitative and qualitative values. It includes the performance of the business, the accomplishment of
objectives with reference to profits, organization building, succession planning and corporate success.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of shareholding of the Company is annexed to this report under the section of “Investor Relations”.
FOREIGN HOLDING POSITION
Al Futtaim Industries Co. LLC., incorporated in UAE, is the holding company of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited, being
the holder of 50.02% shares of the Company. CNHI, incorporated in November 12, 1999, holding 43.17%
shares of AGTL.
BUSNIESS CONTINUITY PLAN
There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company considers social, environmental, and ethical matters in the context of the overall business
environment. The Company is committed to work in the best interest of all the stakeholders, in particular the
community in which we live and forms our customer base and employee base specially at the plant located
at Dera Ghazi Khan.
The report on Corporate Social Responsibilities, including its approach to health and safety, human resources,
social, environmental and other related issues are presented in the ‘Sustainability Report’, which forms a part
of this Annual Report.
The Company continued to conduct certain CSR activities. The Company is focused on relevant social
endeavors such as developing local talent, employment of special persons and playing an active role in the
social welfare of the community especially in Dera Ghazi Khan where the plant is located. Considerable
efforts have also been made relating to industrial relations, consumer protection measures and business
ethics. On the environmental impact and measures, the Company has been committed and it has taken
certain measures relating to energy saving, re-use, re-cycling, environmental protection, plantation, fuel
efficiency, etc.
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
No change has occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the Company.
DEFAULT OF PAYMENTS, DEBT/LOAN, TAXES AND LEVIES
Adhering to the best business practices, the Company recognizes its responsibility of timely repayments of
due amount. No default on payment of loan/debts was recorded during the year under review. Furthermore,
no payment on account of taxes, duties and levies is overdue or outstanding at financial year end.
MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT & TRACTOR INDUSTRY
The provisional GDP growth rate of Pakistan for FY2020 is estimated at -0.38%. The performance of the
agriculture sector, regarded as the lifeline of Pakistan’s economy as it employs a large portion of the total work
force remained subdued. It grew by 2.67% which is considerably higher compared to previous year of 0.6%.
Overall the tractor industry witnessed a significant decrease of 4.6% in the calendar year 2020 as compared
to the comparable period. According to published numbers, approx. 39,258 tractors were sold during the
current period as against to 41,156 last year.
BUSNIESS PEROFMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
The Company remained principally engaged in the manufacturing and/or sale of agricultural tractors and
spare parts. The Company made various improvements to its Dabung model during the year to strengthen
Company’s presence in gh HP segment.
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The Company is committed to improve its product quality at both incoming and assembly stages. A
sophisticated lab is currently being set up at the plant to ensure quality of inbound components. The quality
lab has become operational with further improvements & enhancements and also installation of
Dynamometers (Engine shop) have been completed and expected to be fully functioning by mid of year
2021.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report except as disclosed in this
report.
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board of Directors is aware of its responsibility with respect to internal controls environment and
accordingly has established an efficient system of internal financial controls for ensuring effective and
efficient conduct of operations, safeguarding of Company assets, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and reliable financial reporting. The independent Internal Audit function of the Company regularly
appraises and monitors the implementation of financial controls, whereas the Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the internal control framework and financial statements on quarterly basis.
FUTURE DEVLOPMENT & OUTLOOK
AGTL remains focused on the delivery of quality products, in line with its mission statement and keeping in view
the economic environment affecting the Company as highlighted above. Business plans are developed and
continuously monitored for any updates to reflect strategies for overall success. AGTL being cost effective,
driven by optimism and belief in its ever-agile workforce, has a hands-on management style and high
standards of workmanship, thus we believe that AGTL is a perfect example of a progressive company.
CREDIT RATING
Credit rating is an assessment of the credit standing of entities in Pakistan. VIS Credit Rating Company Ltd. (VIS)
has reaffirmed entity ratings of ‘A/A-1’ (Single A/A-One) to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited. Long Term Rating of ‘A’
reflects good credit quality and adequate protection factors. Risk factors may vary with possible changes in
the economy. Short Term Rating of ‘A1’ signifies high certainty of timely payment, excellent liquidity factors
supported by good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors are minor. Outlook on the assigned ratings is
‘Stable’.
PRINCIPAL RISKS, CHALLENGES AND UNCERTAINTIES
In response to main risks and uncertainties facing the Company, effective management through mitigating
strategies has been done. For example: In addressing business risks, the Company’s strategies and
medium-term business plans consider relevant internal and external factors.; Various strategies have been
introduced in 2020 to effectively manage the increasing metal costs; The drive for localization, currently
standing at 92%, combined with short term supplier management were key success factors in balancing the
increased cost of metal and other raw materials.
The company’s mission is to regain market leadership for being one of the most cost-effective producers of
the highest quality tractors, its most enduring competitive edge being the quality of its tractors.
FINANCIAL & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The Company has complied with all material requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.
Following are the statements on financial and corporate governance / control framework:
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-

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

-

Appropriate accounting policies appropriately disclosed in the financial statements have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial statements. Accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment.

-

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of these financial statements.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

-

The Company has fully complied with the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

-

The Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and their spouses and
minor children have not traded in Company’s shares during the year, except 1,000 shares purshased by
Ms. Farah Qureshi, Independent director during the year.

-

The key audited operating and financial results for the last six years have been included in this Annual
Report.

-

Six meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. Number of meetings of the Board’s audit
committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee was five and one respectively. Details of
attendance by each director / member are shown in this Annual Report under the section of “Code of
Corporate Governance”.

-

Independent director is entitled only for the fee for attending the meetings as approved by the Board.
The level of fee is appropriate and commensurate with the level of responsibility and expertise. Other
non-executive directors are not entitled to any remuneration. Audited financial statements of the
Company contain details of aggregate amount of remuneration separately of executive and
non-executive directors.

-

Board Audit Committee reviewed the related party transactions and the Board approved them. These
transactions were in line with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
the Companies Act, 2017. The Company maintains a thorough and complete record of all such
transactions. The details of related party transactions are disclosed in a note of the financial statements
of the Company.

-

Information about taxes and levies is given in the financial statements.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The present auditors, Messrs. A.F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. The directors endorse recommendations of the Audit Committee for the
re-appointment of Messrs. A.F. Ferguson & Co. as the auditors for the financial year 2021.
FINANCIALS ON WEBSITE
The financial results of the year 2020 would be placed on the Company’s website and can be viewed on
www.alghazitractors.com.
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
The Board is grateful to our employees, our dealers and our principals – CNH Industrial for their continued
support and commitment. We look forward to not only continuing but improving to deliver great results in the
coming years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Raheel Asghar
Chief Executive Officer

Malik Ehtisham Ikram
CFO & Executive Director

Karachi: May 4, 2021
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Chairman’s
Review Report
As we closed yet another year, it
gives me immense pleasure to
present the review report for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Company’s performance overview
The year 2020 has been very encouraging for the Agricultural Sector wherein agrarian economy witnessed
a growth of 2.67% in the outgoing fiscal year 2019-20 as compared to a poor 0.85% growth in FY2018-19.
But despite of this growth in agrarian sector, overall tractor market shrank during the same time by 4% owing
to pandemic driven lockdowns and market distortions especially during first half of 2020.
Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd. (‘the Company’) achieved sales volume of 12,142 tractors and posted a profit before tax
of Rs. 1.93 billion more fully explained in the directors’ report. To stay resilient to evolving market dynamics, the
Company took various measures including structural re-organization, working capital optimization and
operational turnaround which in combination have reflected positively on margins and efficiency ratios of the
Company.
One of the key focus areas of the past year was the health and safety of our employees, customers and
suppliers. Effective hygiene and social distancing protocols have been established throughout the
company and the health of our staff and stakeholders remains our foremost concern as the pandemic
unfolds. This will require a customized and flexible response to Covid-19 and I would like to specifically thank
our employees and management for their unwavering support beyond the call of duty.
As we look forward, delivery of quality products will remain key focus of our management along with good
business plans for the overall success of the Company especially for under-penetrated areas. I am confident
that the Company will be successful in navigating through future challenges, in line with the Company’s vision
and mission statements, while giving regard to pandemic and economic environment affecting the
Company.
Board’s performance and role effectiveness
The overall performance of the Company’s Board of Directors (‘the Board’) and effectiveness of the role
played by the Board in achieving the objectives of the Company, have remained a vital advantage
throughout the year.
The Board has worked tremendously hard and exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated
in the Companies Act, 2017 and the applicable Code of Corporate Governance. The Company has
complied with related principles of the said code as more fully stated in the Company’s 2020 statement of
compliance with code of corporate governance. Appropriate directors’ reviews have been published with
all the condensed interim financial information and 2020 annual financial statements. The Board has
performed its duties diligently and has managed the affairs of the Company in an effective and efficient
manner. The best interest of shareholders of the Company has been upheld.
The Board recognizes that well-defined corporate governance processes are indispensable in enhancing
corporate accountability. The Board has also established its appropriate committees for its support, in order
to have meticulous oversight. The Board met frequently enough during the year 2020 and held six meetings
in addition to the meetings held by its committees. The effective role played by the Board was the key in
managing the affairs of the Company whose performance was great in a difficult economic environment.
During the year, the Company’s Board of Directors has played an effective role in ensuring that the
Company objectives are achieved. I am grateful to the Board for the instrumental efforts which were pivotal
in achieving good results of the Company.
I would like to extend my gratitude to all stakeholders for the good performance of the Company and
commend the Company’s Board of Directors, management, and employees for achieving the said
performance through dedication and hard work.

Bernd Schwendtke
Chairman
May 04, 2021
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Forward Looking Statement
Analysis of prior period’s forward-looking disclosures/Status of Projects
Company sales and production levels remained lower in line with the targets. There were various factors
contributing to lower sales volume i.e. Weakening purchasing power of farmers, persistent economic
slowdown and depressed automobile / tractor market remain the most significant issues. Government did not
announce any support till the end of 2020 affecting the sales in the year. Sales volume deteriorated against
the backdrop of off-season, worsening water crisis which was affecting the farmers’ economic health, various
fiscal and tax measures by the Government and a general slowdown of the overall economic activity due to
the COVID-19 lockdowns.
The deterioration of the currency was another factor contributing to increased prices affecting affordability
and volumes. Despite all of the above, the Company continued its efforts of engaging with customers and
ensuring quality improvements and efficiencies.
The Company has successfully completed the construction of its state-of-the-art QA Lab building in 2019. A
number of new projects have been initiated considering the strategic goals of the Company. The project
includes construction and renovation projects such as procurement & installation of dynamometers,
construction of offline sheds, installation of fuel tanks etc.
Forward looking statement
The year 2020 has been proven very encouraging for Agricultural Sector where the growth of agrarian
economy witnessed a 2.67% in the outgoing fiscal year 2019-20 compared to a poor 0.58% growth in FY19.
But despite of all odds Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd. (‘the Company’) still achieved sales volume of 12,142 tractors
and had a profit before tax of Rs. 1.93 billion more fully explained in the directors’ report. Constant pressure
on gross margins was owing to cost inflation, rupee devaluation and economic condition of farmers
community. Rapidly changing Environmental conditions including crop yields and availability of water for
irrigation in general, are also the key factors that translates into various opportunities and challenges for tractor
Industry.
As we look forward, delivery of quality products will remain key focus of our management along with good
business plans for the overall success of the Company especially for under-penetrated areas. Management
is confident that the Company will be successful in navigating through the future challenges, in line with the
Company’s vision and mission and while giving regard to economic environment affecting the Company.
AGTL is driven by optimism and belief on its ever agile workforce. Being cost effective, having hands on
management style along with the high standards of workmanship makes AGTL a perfect example for growth
and development.
Keeping in view the foregoing, the Company is positive about future prospects and expects to perform well
in the ensuing years. Timing of settlement of long outstanding refund due from Govt. are also critical for
cashflows and profitability.
Sources of Information and Assumptions Used for Forecasts
The company prepares annual budgets and forecasts to manage business more effectively. The forecasting
is done keeping in view the industrial trends and historical data. Projections are developed based on macro
and micro economic indicators, market trends & research, local material price forecast, data from regulatory
& taxation authorities, seasonal variations & competitors’ actions etc.
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Information is also generated internally from critical functions of the company including Marketing,
Manufacturing and production, Human resource, Finance etc.
Data acquired from the sources mention earlier is compiled and corroborated for the preparation of annual
budget and forecast. These budgets serve as formal plan and target for the Company after the Board’s
approval.
Response to Future Challenges and Uncertainties
Effective management through mitigating strategies has been done in response to major risks and
uncertainties facing the Company. In addressing business risk the Company’s strategies, plans and oversight
takes into account relevant factors; Risk of increase in price of raw materials is kept in check by price revision
committee of the Company; Exchange rate risk has been reduced as the Company’s product has around
92% local components; Risk of inability to source raw material is managed by constantly monitoring the
supply base and explore opportunities for alternate sources of raw material for ensuring sustained operation.
The ongoing pandemic continues to pose threat to overall economy as well as agriculture sector of the
country. Continued Government support and subsidies are therefore critical for sustenance of agriculture
sector in the country.
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Awards for the Year 2020

Best Corporate Report Award
Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd. was awarded 4th position for
“Best Corporate Report Award 2019” in the Engineering
& Auto Sector. This award was presented to AGTL by
The Joint Committee of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the Institute of Cost
and Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP).

Corporate
Excellence Award
Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd. received the
coveted Corporate Excellence award
from the Management Association of
Pakistan for demonstrating excellence in
corporate management.
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Stakeholders’
Engagement
AGTL is committed to conduct and
enhance its relationship with all classes
of stakeholders acting in good faith,
with loyalty, fairness, transparency and
with due respect for the Company's
core ethical values. Further, the
objective of the Company's investor
relations policy is to govern the
disclosure of material information to
analysts, shareholders and potential
investors in a manner designated to
provide
broad
non-exclusionary
distribution of information.
Building and retaining the trust of the
Company’s internal and external
stakeholders is essential to Al-Ghazi’s
continued
business
success.
Engagement and dialogue are
consequently
an
important
component to understand their
expectations, needs and concerns.
Stakeholders’ expectation and tools
and interaction channel as detailed in
adjacent
table
represent
our
engagement
and
relationship
management.

Stakeholder
•

Compliance with laws and regulations

•

Collaboration and access to information

•

Technical support on specific industry related issues

•

Clarity of organization and protection in periods of
uncertainty

•

Clear and transparent reward system

•

Training and professional development

•

Stimulating and safe work environment

•

Information on Company’s strategy and results

Employees’
families /
Community
Development

•

Indirect participation in corporate life

Dealers
and service
network

•

Complete and rapidly accessible product
information

•

Business profitability

•

Quality and reliability of products / parts

•

Competitive prices

•

Extension of financial and non-financial assistance

•

Quality, reliability and safety of products

•

Competitive prices

•

Speed and efficiency of after sales services

•

Continuity of supply

•

Fulfillment of contractual obligation

•

Access to information

•

Transparent and responsible management

•

Value creation (return on investment, sustainability of
business)

Analysts /
Institutional
investors

•

Availability of relevant information

Banks /
financial
institutions

•

Continuity of business and operations

•

Good financial management

Media

•

Fulfilment of obligations of arrangement

Government
and
regulatory
bodies

Employees

Existing and
prospective
customers

Suppliers

Shareholders
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Stakeholder’s expectation

Tools and interaction Channel

Effect on AGTL's performance and value

• Periodic and adhoc reporting

The Company remains focused to have sufficient level
of compliance with laws and regulations.

•

Daily dialogue

Human resources play a key role for organisation's success.

•

Employee lunches / dinners

•

Discussions regarding appraisals
and development path

•

Inhouse communication

•

Easy access to top management

•

Adherence to labour laws

•

Staff town with family and bachelor
accommodation

•

Transport facility

•

Vaccination / health awareness
campaigns

•

Participation in sports day events

•

Health care plans, Community hall

•

Daily contacts and periodic
meetings with the network

•

Individuals responsible for
monitoring the network and
ensuring fulfillment of contractual
standards

•

Programs to support dealers
including training, conferences and
other incentives.

•

Tractor festivals

•

After Sale Service programme

•

Market research

•

Three-way communication through
dealership, service centres and
mechanical workshops

•

Daily relationship through Supply
Chain Department

Our effective management of suppliers facilitates in achieving
production objectives.

•

Shareholders meetings

•

Annual / Quarterly reports

Support of shareholders serve as a foundation to achieve the
Company's objectives and vision.

•

Price sensitive communications and
information

•

Daily dialog (email, telephones)

•

Investor relations section of the
Company’s website:
www.alghazitractors.com

•

Communications to PSX

•

Investor relation section of AGTL's
website, containing relevant
information about the Company"

•

Providing of information as per
requirements of banks

•

Frequent meetings and interaction"

•

Promotional activities are carried
as per Marketing requirements

Adequate activities of the Company assist in maintaining
positive image of the Company at the levels of local
community and employees.

Dealers act as business partners. Satisfactory after sales
services helps in sustainable customer satisfaction.

Loyalty of customers to our products is key in achieving success
and good financial performance.

Availability of adequate information about the Company helps
in maintaining positive image of the Company with analysts and
institutional investors.

Attractive rates and terms of overdrafts and other arrangements.

Necessary awareness about the Company and its products is
imparted.
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Notice of 38th
Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 38th Annual General Meeting of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (the Company) will
be held on Tuesday, 15 June 2021 at 04:00 PM. Due to prevailing conditions owing to COVID-19 Pandemic,
the meeting will be held through video-conference facility. The Shareholders will transact the following
business at the meeting:
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, the Chairman’s Review Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.
2. To declare the final cash dividend, the directors have recommended a dividend of 428% i.e. Rs. 21.39
per share.
3. To appoint Auditors for the term ending at the conclusion of next annual general meeting and to fix their
remuneration. The retiring Auditors M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co. being eligible, have offered themselves for
reappointment. The members are hereby notified that the audit committee and board of directors have
recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co. for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company.
By Order of the Board

Rashid Mohiuddin
Acting Company Secretary
Karachi, 25 May, 2021
NOTES:
1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 9 June 2021 to 15 June 2021 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received in order at our Share Registrar’s office, M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
situated at 8-F Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of
business on 8 June 2021 will be treated in time for the purpose of entitlement of the transferees to attend
and vote at the meeting.
2. For attending the annual general meeting, members are required to email their name, folio number, valid
email address and number of shares held in their name to agm@alghazitractors.com with subject of
email stated as ‘Registration for AGM of AGTL’.
3. Link for videoconference and related credentials will be shared only with those members/proxies whose
emails containing all the required particulars are received at the given email address by or before 05:00
P.M. on 13 June 2021. The shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda
items of the AGM on agm@alghazitractors.com.
4. A member entitled to attend and vote may appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. No
person shall act as a proxy (except for a corporation) unless he/she is entitled to be present and vote in
his/her own right. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Proxies may
also be appointed by emailing a scanned copy of signed form by the shareholder authorizing proxy
along with email address of proxy and relevant details (as stated above) to agm@alghazitractors.com.
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5. CDC share holders or their proxies are requested to bring with them their Computerized National Identity
Card or Passport along with the participants ID number and their Account Number at the time of attending
the Annual General Meeting through video-conference in order to facilitate their identification. For CDC
shareholders, the representatives of corporate bodies should bring in video-conference attested copies
of board of directors' resolution/powers of attorney and/or all such documents as are required under
Circular No.1 dated 26 January 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(“SECP”) for the purpose.
6. Members (non-CDC) are requested to promptly communicate to the Share Registrar of the Company any
change in their addresses. CDC shareholders should submit any change in their addresses to the CDC.
The Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC and Corporate Entities
who have not yet submitted their NTN are once again reminded to have these details updated with their
respective CDS participants, in case of CDC account holders and to send the same at the earliest directly
to the Company’s Share registrar at the address given herein above, in case of physical shareholders.
Please provide folio numbers with the copy of CNIC / NTN.
7. Shareholders who could not collect their previous dividend/shares are advised to contact our Share
Registrar to claim their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. The Unclaimed shares, Dividend which remain
so unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is due and payable shall be dealt with
in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act.
8. The Form of Proxy in English and Urdu is attached in the Annual Report and should be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC Numbers should be mentioned on the forms. For CDC
shareholders, attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form; and in case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of
attorney and attested copy of valid CNIC of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the
corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company. The
Form of Proxy is also available on the Company’s website.
9. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 along with reports have
been placed on the website of the Company. The Annual Report for 2020 of the Company shall be
electronically available on the PUCARS system of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Company’s
website under section of Shareholders Information. Additionally, in the interest of shareholders, for those
shareholders who had previously provided their valid email addresses, arrangement has been made to
send our 2020 annual report to such shareholders through email; and for those shareholders who had not
provided email addresses it has been arranged to courier a letter to them guiding them to access our
2020 annual report electronically.
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Investor Relations
At AGTL we are committed to ensuring that shareholders and investors have easy access to clear, reliable
and meaningful information on the company in order to make informed investment decisions. In the context
of constantly evolving requirements of disclosure, transparency and corporate governance, we aim to
provide investors with an accurate, coherent and balanced account of company’s performance. To do this,
multiple communication platforms are utilized including annual general meetings with shareholders and the
investor relations section on our website. Apart from financial results, the website, www.alghazitractors.com,
has other investor related information including Company profile, annual and quarterly reports, major
announcements and information on free float shares.
Further, video to be confirmed by reporting presentation of CEO is also placed on company’s website
detailing financial position and performance of the company, projects accomplished during the year and
planned for next year including as overview of future prospects of the company.
SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION
The Company is listed on Pakistan stock Exchange. The share symbol is AGTL. The share capital of the
Company is Rs. 289.8 million. With a base price of Rs. 5 per share, the total number of the shares is
57,964,201.
There are 2,631 shareholders which are listed as follows:
Al-Futtaim Industries Company

28,992,705 shares

=

50.02%

CNH Industrial N.V.

25,022,379 shares

=

43.17%

604,336 shares

=

1.04%

3,344,781 shares

=

5.77%

57,964,201 shares

=

100%

Companies and corporations
Individual and others
Total
DIVIDEND POLICY

AGTL has a long history of paying rich dividends. The dividend policy is in the best interest of the Company,
the shareholders and the stakeholders.
AGTL’s equity now stands at Rs. 2,288.1 million. The Company’s five-rupee share is without any doubt the top
stock of the Auto and Industrial Engineering sector of Pakistan.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Tuesday 15 June, 2021 at 04:00 p.m.
DIVIDEND PAYMENTS DURING THE YEAR
The Board of Directors have recommended final dividend of Rs. 21.39 per share for the year 2020.
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SHARE REGISTRAR
Share transfers and all other investor related matters are attended to and processed by our registrar FAMCO
Associates (Pvt) Limited.
FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Limited
8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery
Block 6, P.E.C.H.S
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi
Tel: 92 21 32420755, 32427012, 32426597
Fax: 92 21 2475604
Timings: 8:30 am to 1:00 pm & 2:00 pm to 3:30 pm
INVESTOR RELATION’S CALENDAR
2020 Annual Financial Results

May 5, 2021

2020 Annual General Meeting

June 15, 2021

Book Closure dates for 2020

9 June 2021 to 15 June 2021

2021 1st Quarterly Results

June 30, 2021

2021 2nd Quarterly Results

August 27, 2021

2021 3rd Quarterly Results

October 30, 2021

2021 Annual Financial Results

April 30, 2022

Dates are subject to change.
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Shareholding Information
As at December 31, 2020
S.NO.

No. of
Shareholder

Shareholders Category

1

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and
minor children (to be filled by Company)

2

Associated Companies, Undertakings and related
Parties (to be confirm by Company)

No.of Shareholders

Percentage

1

1,000

0.000

2

54,015,084

93.187

3

NIT and ICP

4

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Financial Institutions

5

334,999

0.578

5

Insurance Companies

3

220,412

0.380

6

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

1

675

0.001

7

General Public :
a. local
b .Foreign

2,574

3,115,044

5.377

45

276,987

0.478

2,631

57,964,201

100

1
1

28,992,705
25,022,379

50.02%
43.17%

8

Others
Total

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest:
Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC
CNH Industrial N.V.

Al-Futtaim industries Company LLC

50.02%

CNH Global N.V.

43.17%

Individuals

5.32%

Banks, Insurance Companies,
Modaraba Companies,
Mutual Fund & Other

1.49%

Details of purchase/sale of shares by Directors and their spouses / minor children during 2020
S. No. Name of Holder
1
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DateSale/Purchase

No of Shares

Rate Per Share

Purchased

1,000

@ 290.00

Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2020
No. of
Shareholders
968
764
367
408
65
19
11
6
5
1
1
3
3
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2,631

Shareholding
From
1
101
501
1001
5001
10001
15001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
55001
65001
85001
100001
135001
165001
330001
25020001
28990001

To

Shares Held

100
500
1000
5000
10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
60000
70000
90000
105000
140000
170000
335000
25025000
28995000

42,083
216,002
291,816
868,130
476,540
247,473
188,635
132,718
134,782
34,999
35,450
127,002
145,250
115,000
68,290
90,000
100,785
137,300
166,362
330,500
25,022,379
28,992,705
57,964,201

Categories of Shareholders
Sr. No. Categories of Share holders

1234-

Number of Shareholders

Individuals
Associated Companies
Others
Central Depository Company (b)

553
2
7
2,069
2,631

Shares Held

325,111
54,015,084
21,012
3,602,994
57,964,201

Percentage

0.58%
93.19%
0.04%
6.19%
100.00%

(b) Categories of Account holders and Sub-Account holders
as per Central Depository Company of Pakistan
as at December 31, 2020
Sr. No. Categories of Share holders

12345678-

Individuals
Investment Companies
Insurance Companies
Joint Stock Companies
Financial Institutions
Modaraba Companies
Mutual Fund
Others

Number of Shareholders

Shares Held

Percentage

2,016
1
3
29
5
1
2
12
2,069

2,792,584
1,350
220,412
43,000
334,999
675
5,550
204,424
3,602,994

4.73%
0.00%
0.45%
0.07%
0.57%
0.00%
0.01%
0.35%
6.19%
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Composition of Local and Imported
Material and Sensitivity Analysis Due
to Exchange Fluctuation
The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuation not only for its direct imported raw materials but also
for those materials which are although procured locally but comprises substantially of imported content.
Due to considerable increase in local and imported metal prices owing to drastic rupee devaluation, the
gross margins remained under extra ordinary pressure during past few years.

Raw Material
Composition
Local Component
Imported Component

92%
8%

Sensitivity Analysis:
Management of the Company closely monitors exchange rate fluctuations and takes necessary action to
mitigate the risks associated with such fluctuations. During the year the exchange rate increased by around
4%, which resultantly increased the raw material cost by estimated 4%.
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Major Capital Projects
AGTL has a systematic procedure for evaluating the requirements of capital expenditure. The capital
expenditure is primarily focused on capacity expansion, safety and sustainability for continued production of
premium products while focusing on energy conservation and environment protection. Exhaustive financial
evaluation is also carried out which includes payback period, NPV/IRR, cash flow requirements and other
financial analysis techniques.
Taking a long-term view, the Company has undertaken various projects like:
Quality Assurance Lab
Component Storage sheds
Offline shed
Installation of fuel tanks
Construction of washrooms for staff & workers and other facilitation projects to name a few with major
focus on product development, quality enhancement and staff wellbeing.
All major capital expenditure/projects undertaken during the year were in line with the Company’s strategic
objective of facility enhancement adding value to the Company’s processes and operations while
contributing towards effectiveness and efficiency of tractor’s production leading to expansion and growth in
business. Major capital expenditures and projects planned for next years are to meet the objectives of growth
led by focusing on core business as well through market penetration.
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Governance
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Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance is the system of rules, practices and processes by which a company is directed and
controlled.
The Board of Directors of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is committed to providing satisfactory returns to its
shareholders and fulfilling its corporate governance obligations and responsibilities in the best interest of the
Company and its stakeholders
In pursuit of the highest standards of governance, AGTL has embraced all of the Corporate Governance
Reforms promulgated by its regulators. AGTL’s corporate governance framework adheres to the guidelines of
the Revised Code of Corporate Governance 2019.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is the apex body responsible and accountable for the long-term success of the Company.
In addition to its statutory duties, the Board provides entrepreneurial leadership, sets strategic objectives,
establishes and maintains a framework of prudent risk management and control, sets the Company’s values
and ethical standards and considers sustainability issues.
The Board has delegated some of its functions to its Committees. These Committees report to the Board and
matters deliberated by the Committee are approved by the Board.
The Company’s CEO has responsibility for the day-to-day management and is supported in this function by
the AGTL Management Team.
In fulfilling its roles and responsibilities, some key focus areas for the Board during the year 2020 are set out below:
Key focus areas of the Board during the year 2020 included:
•
•
•

Overseeing management’s performance in strategy implementation and monitoring the financial
position of the Company including approval of the financial statements
Reviewing business operations and development plans including budgets
Approving revisions to the Company’s policies.

MATTERS DELEGATED TO THE MANAGEMENT
Key responsibility of the management is to ensure that routine business operations and day-to-day
management of affairs are conducted in accordance with the policies and decisions of the Board and in an
effective and ethical manner. The management is also concerned with identification of key risks and
opportunities that could have a relevance to the Company, addressing the same and to update the Board
with any salient related changes. The Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements as per applicable accounting and reporting standards and for related internal controls,
while the Board oversees the financial reporting process.
BOARD COMPOSITION
AGTL is committed to ensuring that the composition of the Board continues to include directors who bring an
appropriate mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity to the Board ‘s decision making.
The Directors believe in having members who can exercise judgment independently, in good faith and in the
best interest of the Company. Hence, during the year ended 31 December, 2021, out of the eight Directors,
only the CEO, Mr. Raheel Asghar and the CFO, Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram were executive directors. To reinforce
this belief, the Board is chaired by a non-Executive Chairman, Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke.
The Company, had inducted a female director on its board. The appointed independent Female Director,
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Ms. Farah Qureshi, had provided her declaration of independence as per the criteria defined in the
Companies Act 2017 to the Chairman of the Board, as per CCG Regulations.
BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established an Audit Committee and a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee to
assist with the discharge of its responsibilities.
The above Board Committees are chaired by non-executive director only. Other directors may attend the
meeting by invitation. Each committee operates under a written specific charter approved by the Board.
The Chairman of each committee provides a detailed report to the Board along with recommendations of
the Committee.
The Composition of the above mentioned commetties as on december 31, 2020 were as follows:
Name of Directors

Board Appointment

Board Committees
Audit
Committee

Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke
Mr. Richard Kassaby
Mr. Raheel Asghar
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
Ms. Farah Qureshi
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin
Mr. Vincent Delassagne
Mr. Matthieu Sejourné

Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Executive
Executive
Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Non-Executive

Member
Member

Human Resource
and Remunerations
Committee Meetings

Member

Member
Member
Member
Member

In determining the composition of the Board, consideration is given to the optimal mix of background, skills
and experience that will position the Board to guide the Company. The board members comprise of business
leaders, professionals with financial audit, accounting, human resource backgrounds and engineers.
BOARD EFFECTIVENESS
The Board has access to complete, adequate and timely information and resources. A formal agenda is
prepared for all Board meetings. The agenda and supporting documents are circulated to all directors at
least seven days before the meeting.
The board meets on a quarterly basis to review and approve the release of quarterly results. Ad-hoc meetings
may be convened as necessary to consider other specific matters. In addition to having meeting, decisions
of the Board and its Committees may also be obtained via circular resolution. Schedule of all board meetings
and Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the next calendar year is planned in advance.
The Board has access to the CEO, members of the management and the Company Secretary at all times.
The Company Secretary provides support to the Board and ensures that Board procedures and applicable
rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also assists the Chairman in ensuring proper
information flow within the Board and its Committees as well as advising the Board on all governance matters.
The Company Secretary attends all meetings and ensures that minutes are circulated within the stipulated
time.
The attedance of directors at the meetings of the boad of the committies held during the year ended
December 31, 2020 was as follows:
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Directors

Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke
Mr. Raheel Asghar appointed w.e.f. October 05, 2020
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
Ms. Farah Qureshi appointed w.e.f. May 28, 2020
Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum resigned w.e.f. February 13, 2020
Mr. Richard Kassaby appointed w.e.f. February 13, 2020
Mr. Vincent Delassagne
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin
Mr. Matthieu Sejourné appointed w.e.f. February 13, 2020
Mr. Mohammad Shahid Hussain resigned w.e.f. July 28, 2020

Board Meetings
Eligible to
Attend

Attended

6
2
6
5
1
6
6
6
5
3

6
2
6
5
1
5
6
6
5
3

Audit Committee
Meetings

Human Resource
and Remunerations
Committee Meetings

Eligible to
Attend

Attended

Eligible to
Attend

Attended

5

5

1

1

1

1

4
1
5

4
1
4
1

1

5

5

DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM AND ORIENTATION
As part of the Company’s continuing education for all Directors, articles, reports and press releases relevant
to the Company’s business are circulated to keep all directors updated on industry issues and trends.
Changes in regulations are also informed to the Board. The external auditors routinely update the Audit
Committee on new and revised financial reporting standards relevant to the Company.
Further, at the time of induction of a new director, orientation is carried out for the director to acquaint him of
roles and responsibilities to effectively govern the affairs of the Company.
ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CHAIRMAN
The Chairman of the Board Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke, is a non-executive director. The Chairman is
responsible for leadership and effective performance of the Board and for maintenance of relationships
between directors that are open, cordial, and conducive to productive corporation.
Duties of the Chairman are:
• To lead and oversee the Board of Directors.
• To facilitate an open flow of information between management and the Board, thus to involve the Board
in the process of effective decision making for the Company.
• To lead a critical evaluation of Company’s management, practices and adherence to the Company’s
strategic plan and objectives.
• In accordance with Company law and as and when required chair the meetings of the Board and
meetings of the shareholders in accordance with their terms of reference.
• To establish, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the CEO, an agenda for each meeting of
the Board.
• To seek compliance of the management to implement the decisions of the Board.
• To work closely with the CEO and provide support and guidance for the management on major issues.
• To promote the highest standards of corporate governance.
• To ensure that the Company has an effective and clear communication with its shareholders.
• To ensure that new directors receive appropriate induction into the Company.
ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The CEO has executive responsibility over the business directions set by the Board. The CEO is accountable to
the Board for the conduct and performance of the Company.
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Responsibilities of the CEO are:
• To align the entire Company to the Vision, Mission and Strategy evolved by the Board, such that everyone
will focus his efforts to the success of the Company.
• To build a corporate culture and be a role model for the entire organization.
• To set performance standards for the Company and promote those standards with confidence.
• To manage the day-to-day operations of the Company’s business, strategic planning, budgeting,
financial reporting and risk management.
• To build good relationship between and among the employees of the Company, the government, the
supply chain associates, the dealers and other stakeholders of the Company.
• To provide strategic leadership to the organisation to ensure its future growth through unexpected as well
as foreseen threats, opportunities and to keep the Company in focus with competition, markets, products
and growth technology.
• To set standards required to maintain a competitive advantage in the industry and implement these
standards into the output of the Company.
• To build a talented team (hire talent and fire non-performers) and to lead the team to working together in
a common direction thus to steer the Company to its strategy and vision through direction and effective
communication.
• To set budgets, to fund projects which support the strategy and ramp down projects which lose money.
• To manage the Company’s capital judiciously and carefully control the Company’s expenditures.
• To provide leadership and develop policies and procedures of the Company to ensure compliance of
these procedures and policies.
• To develop human resource of the Company, the Company’s staffing needs of the future, training,
compensation packages and to create a corporate culture of high standards and good value.
• To build effective PR for the Company.
EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE, MEMBERS OF BOARD AND OF ITS COMMITTEES
There is a formal process for appraisal of Board performance, members of Board and its committees. Annual
appraisals are carried out through a structured questionnaire addressing the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Board organization;
Board meeting and materials;
Board responsibility and performance;
Interaction with management and key stakeholders;
The audit committees and internal audit and corporate reporting;
Performance of the Board Committees.

The questionnaire also includes the assessment of the Chairman of the Board including his ability to lead the
Board meetings.
The evaluation and feedback are consolidated and presented to the Board, through the Human Resource
and Remuneration Committee, for discussion on areas of strengths and weaknesses.
PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF CEO
Board has an obligation to shareholders to ensure that the Company is led well. Evaluation of the CEO is
therefore a continuous process and is formally taken up by the Board with reference to the “Responsibilities of
the CEO” as formally approved by the board.
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The performance of the CEO is appraised by the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the
Board and discussed by the Board. CEO’s performance is evaluated on the performance of business,
accomplishments of objectives with particular reference to profit, goals and corporate success.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST AMONG BOARD MEMBERS
The Company in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance annually circulates and obtains a
signed copy of Code of Conduct applicable to all its employees and Directors. Directors are required to
disclose, at the time of appointment and during their term, the directorships they hold in other corporate
bodies. As per the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, every director is required to provide to the
Board complete details regarding any material transaction which may bring conflict of interest with the
Company.
Closed periods are determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors from dealing in
the shares of the company, prior to each Board meeting involving announcement of interim / final results,
distribution to shareholders or any other business decision which could materially affect the share price. Also,
all directors are required to disclose any transaction in the shares of the Company immediately to the
Company Secretary. All trading in shares of the Company by the Directors or executives and all related party
transactions are fully disclosed in the financial statements of the Company.
No conflict of interest was reported during 2020.
POLICY FOR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AMONG BOARD MEMBERS, AND MANAGEMENT OF CONFLICT OF
INTEREST
All business decisions and choices taken on behalf of the Company are made in the best interests of the
Company. The Directors are obligated to avoid every possible conflict of interest, with particular regard to
personal or family considerations, which might affect the independence of judgment when deciding what is
in the Company's interests and what is the most appropriate way to pursue it.
POLICY ON NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with corporate law and regulations. Only independent director is entitled for the fee for
attending the Board meetings as approved by the Board.
POLICY OF RETENTION OF BOARD FEE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EARNED BY HIM AS NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR IN OTHER COMPANIES
AGTL has two executive directors on the Board who are not serving as Board member of any other listed
company.
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES EXCEEDING LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
AGTL is committed to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the Company also
endeavors to go the extra-mile voluntarily in terms of adopting best governance practices exceeding legal
requirements and following are examples in this respect:
- Disclosure of various important information in the annual report, as per best practices, like ratios and trends,
graphs, commentary, analysis, etc.
- Health, Safety and Environment strategies for the safety of employees and equipment.
- High standards of management and reporting practices, as evident from the receiving of numerous awards
consistently from ICAP/ICMAP, MAP, etc.
DIVERSITY POLICY
AGTL strives for being an equal opportunity employer, free from any discrimination whatsoever due to gender,
cast, creed, religion, ethnicity, colour, or the like. The Company is committed to merit-based environment
where there is fair and equal treatment of employees. In all aspects of human resources management,
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short-listing of candidates for hiring through to their selection, compensation and benefits - monetary and
otherwise, promotions and increments, transfers, social and recreational activities, professional grooming,
terminations, etc., our endeavor is to remain non-discriminate and free of any bias. Accordingly, in every
aspect employee are treated according to their abilities to meet job requirements and all decisions are free
from any form of discrimination.
RELATED PARTIES
Disclosures relating to related parties have been provided in financial statements' section of this annual
report, in accordance with applicable approved accounting and reporting standards. The said disclosures
include name, basis of relationship and percentage of shareholding of related parties including associated
companies with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in
place. Related party transactions have also been disclosed in the financial statements appropriately
alongwith other related parties related disclosures.
The Company has a policy of compliance with corporate law and regulations regarding related party
transactions. All related party transactions along with relevant information were placed before audit
committees for review quarterly. After review by the Committee, the transactions were considered and
approved by the Board keeping in view the recommendations made by the Committee. Directors are also
required to disclose their interest, if any, in accordance with requirements of corporate law and regulations.
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY TOWARDS THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Board of Directors, Audit Committee and the management have been committed to keep the
Company in compliance with accounting and reporting framework as applicable under corporate law. The
management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial statements as per applicable
accounting and reporting standards and for related internal controls.
WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY
The Company has adopted a whistle blowing culture to detect and deter wrongdoing in preparing and
implementing accurate and complete financial reports and records as well as the internal controls essential
to support its financial and accounting system and operations. Violation of matters referred to in the Code of
Conduct signed by all the employees may also be reported. The establishment of whistle blowing structure
also augments the Company’s ability to detect potential fraud, providing another level of comfort and
assurance to the stakeholders.
The policy provides a mechanism for employees to report possible wrongdoings to the Company Secretary
without fear of reprisal or discrimination. Every report case is considered and investigated. The whole process
is looked after by the Audit Committee.
No reportable cases of whistle blowing were raised during 2020.
The Company also has a policy on “Suggestion System”, encouraging all employees to make suggestions.
These are discussed and employees are often rewarded for their input.
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The Company ensures that all shareholders are treated fairly and equitably. The Company is committed to
ensuring that all shareholders have access to clear, reliable and meaningful information. The Company
regularly communicates major developments in business operations to the stock exchange, SECP, press
releases, circular to shareholders and placement of information on Company’ website. The Company also
encourages shareholder participation at the general meetings of the shareholders.
All shareholders are invited to participate in the Company’s general meeting in person or through proxy. The
Chairman delivers a short presentation at each AGM to shareholders to update them on performance of the
Company. Every matter requiring approval is proposed as a separate resolution. Shareholders present are
given an opportunity to clarify or direct questions on issues pertaining to the proposed resolution. The Board is
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in attendance to address these queries and obtain feedback from shareholders. External auditors are also
present as required by law.
Issue raised at last AGM:
The Company’s AGM was held on June 15, 2020. The following were approved by the shareholders:
• Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019; and
• Appointment of M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co. as external auditors.
For above-stated shareholders' approvals, related implementation was timely completed by the Company.
During the AGM held on June 15, 2020 the shareholders asked general queries which were appropriately
responded by directors present in the meeting. However, no significant matter was raised.
Presence of the chairman of the audit committee at AGM:
Chairman of the audit committee was also present at the AGM of the Company held on June 15, 2020 to
answer any questions asked on the audit committee's activities and matters within the scope of the audit
committee's responsibilities.
Encouraging minority shareholders to attend general meetings:
The Company's management aims to encourage minority shareholders to attend general meetings.
Accordingly, the Company send notice of its general meetings to all shareholders in addition to these notices
being published in Urdu and English newspapers.
UNDERSTANDING OF THE VIEWS OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS BY THE DIRECTORS INCLUDING NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS:
AGTL is owned to the extent of 93% by two foreign shareholders namely Al-Futtaim Industries company LLC
and CNH Global N.V. At the time of induction of each of the new director, the Company carries out
orientation in respect of expectation and views of major shareholders.
INVESTOR RELATIONS POLICY AND GRIEVANCE PROGRAMME
The Company is committed to maintain highest standards of corporate transparency and disclosure and
believes that it should provide regular, effective and fair communication with its shareholders. An investor
relation program has been put in place to provide clear, timely and fair disclosure of information about the
Company’s business development and performance.
Shareholders are also welcome to seek any information that they may require by contacting the Company
Secretary at the Head Office – Telephone Number 021-35318901-5. Information / complaints may also be
sent in writing or through email. All efforts are made to provide the required information / resolve their
complaints on priority basis.
POLICY OF SAFETY OF RECORDS
The Company places emphasis on safety and storage of its financial and other records. The Company
ensures that all data and records are retained to meet legal, administrative and operational requirements.
No loss or breach of confidential data was reported during 2020.
BUSINESS CONTINUITY /DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN AND REVIEW BY THE BOARD
The Company places paramount importance on business continuity / disaster recovery. The following
measures are in place to ensure smooth restoration of key operations:
• Application and data back-ups are maintained at different sites to ensure maximum security. In case of
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failure of primary server, the back-up server with the same configuration is also available.
• Comprehensive fire prevention system has been put in place through mechanical installations as well as
frequent fire drills.
• Adequate insurance arrangements have been made to mitigate business risks.
• Preventive maintenance programme coupled with training is carried out intermittently to minimize
business disruptions.
• 24 hours security at the plant, head office and staff town has been provided.
The Board is apprised relating to disaster recovery strategies and mitigating plans.
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE
Information Management and Information Technology is built into AGTL’s strategy. IT system plays an
important role in supporting AGTL’s current operations and its new initiatives. Our ERP system continues to
integrate all function across the Company, facilitating greater efficiency and effectiveness of all processes
and controls.
ANALYST BRIEFING:
As required under PSX regulations, the Company will be arranging in this year a corporate briefing session for
the analyst community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AL-GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2020
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31,
2020.

May 7th, 2021
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2020
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1.

The total number of directors are 8 as per the following:
a.
Male:
7
b.
Female:
1

2. The composition of board is as follows:
Category

Names

a) Independent Director

Ms. Farah Qureshi

b) Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bernd Schwendtke
Mr. Richard Kassaby
Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
Mr. Matthieu Jean-Marie, Bernard Séjourné
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin

c) Executive Directors

Mr. Raheel Asghar
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram

The election of directors was due before December 5, 2020. However, the Company has reported the
impediment in holding extra ordinary general meeting for the election of directors to the Security and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The election of directors was held on March 3, 2021.
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company;
4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which
they were approved or amended has been maintained;
6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;
7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board;
8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;
9. All the directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of
corporate bodies.;
10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of
the Regulations;
11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board;
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12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
a) Audit Committee
- Ms. Farah Qureshi (Chairman)
- Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke
- Mr. Richard Kassaby
- Mr. Andrea Trabacchin
b) HR and Remuneration Committee
- Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke (Chairman)
- Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
- Mr. Vincent de Lassagne
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance;
14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
Audit Committee

Four quarterly meetings and an additional meeting held during in the 3rd
Quarter in the financial year ended 31 December 2020

HR and Remuneration
Committee

One meeting during the financial year ended 31 December, 2020

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function;
16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares
of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP;
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with; and
19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36
are below:
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S. No.

Requirement

1

The Chairman of the Board shall, at the beginning of
term of each Director, issue letter to Directors setting out
their role, obligations, powers and responsibilities in
accordance with the Act.

The Chairman discussed
the Board’s role under the
Regulations, during the
meetings in which casual
vacancies were filled.

10 (5)

2

All companies shall make appropriate arrangements to
carry out orientation for their directors to acquaint them
with these Regulations, applicable laws, their duties and
responsibilities to enable them to effectively govern the
affairs of the listed company for and on behalf of
shareholders.

All the directors are highly
qualified and experienced.
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Explanation

Reg. No.

S. No.

Requirement

Explanation

Reg. No.

3

There shall be a human resource and remuneration
committee of at least three members comprising a
majority of non-executive directors of whom at least
one member shall be an independent director and the
Chairman of the committee shall be an independent
director and the chief executive officer may be
included as a member of the committee.

The Company has fully 28 (1) & (2)
complied
on
the
reconstitution of the Board
on March 3, 2021.

4

The Board may constitute a separate committee,
designed as the nomination committee, of such
number and class of Directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.

The
responsibilities
as
prescribed for the Nomination
Committee are being taken
care at Board level.

29

5

The Board may constitute the Risk Management
Committee, of such number and class of Directors, as it
may deem appropriate in its circumstances, to carry
out a review of effectiveness of risk management
procedures and present a report to the Board.

The Board has tasked the
Audit Committee to oversee
Risk Management related
matters of the Company.

30

6

The Company may post on its website key elements of its
significant policies including but not limited to the following:
I. Communication and disclosure policy;
II. Code of conduct for members of Board of Directors,
senior management and other employees;
III. Risk management policy;
IV. Internal control policy;
V. Whistle blowing policy;
VI. Corporate social responsibility / sustainability /
environmental, social and governance related policy

As the Regulation provides
concession with respect to
disclosure
of
significant
policies on the website, only
key elements of relevant
policies are available on the
Company’s website.

35

BERND SCHWENDTKE
Chairman
May 4, 2021
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Statement of Adherence with the
International Integrated Reporting Framework
This annual report (report) of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines
of the International Integrated Reporting (IR) framework. The Company’s primary objective under the subject
is to enhance shareholder’ and stakeholders’ awareness for better understanding and valued decision
making. We always strive to achieve our objective through excellence in corporate governance and human
resource practices.
AGTL has been continuously working towards transparency of the information presented to its stakeholders. It
has considered various transformations to adapt to a changing corporate environment and the need for
additional information beyond the basic financial statements. This information includes management
commentary, governance disclosures, performance analysis, forward outlook and footnotes to the financial
statement, to better reflect the corporate reporting for information needs of different stakeholders.
The Company has included following content elements for the users of this report:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Organizational Overview and External Environment
Messages for Stakeholders
Governance
Strategy, Risks and Opportunities
Performance Analysis
Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility
Financial Statements
Other Information

The adoption of integrated reporting requires involvement and support of the Board of Directors and the
leadership team. Henceforth, Management of the company provides guidance to achieve company
objectives by advising, assessing, and monitoring business strategies; ensuring the execution and
modification of strategies; and evaluating their own effectiveness and contribution in these activities.
Reporting is being monitored and it is ensured that the relevant information is shared in the most suited way
for the stakeholders of the company.
We will continue to improve the information produced to make it even easier to understand, while taking into
account the opinion of stakeholders reading this report.

Raheel Asghar
Chief Executive Officer
Karachi: May 4th, 2021
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Statement of Unreserved Compliance of International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
Composition
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is preparing statutory financial statements in accordance with the IFRS issued by IASB
as notified under the Companies Act 2017 including the disclosure requirements of fourth schedule.
In addition to this, note 2.1.3 to the financial statement specify few standards, interpretations and disclosures
which are yet to be effective in Pakistan. The Company believes that the impact of such standards,
interpretations and disclosures do not have any material impact to the financial statements.

Raheel Asghar
Chief Executive Officer
Karachi: May 4th, 2021
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Internal Audit

The Company has its own in-house Internal Audit Department which is headed by a qualified Chartered
Accountant. Internal Audit reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on audit matters and
administratively to the CEO. Using risk based audit methodology Internal Audit plans its assignments every
quarter, which is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
The key role of the Internal Audit is to assist the Audit Committee to provide reasonable assurance that the
Company is maintaining an adequate system of internal controls by periodic reviews of material controls and
procedures. A comprehensive Internal Audit report is presented to the Audit Committee at each meeting for
discussion.
The Board has been kept informed of the Audit Committee’s review of internal audit reports and the
management controls in place and is satisfied with the adequacy of the Company’s internal controls.
The Audit Committee ensures that the internal audit function has adequate resources and appropriate
standing within the Company. On an ongoing basis, it assesses the effectiveness of the internal auditors, such
as its scope of work and quality of audit reports.
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Report of the Audit Committee
Composition
The Committee is appointed by the Board and at the year-end comprised of four Non-Executive Directors
as ander:
•
•
•
•

Ms. Farah Qureshi – Chairperson
Mr. Bernd Schwendtke
Mr. Andrea Trabacchin
Mr. Richard Kassaby

The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Committee.
Charter of the Committee
The terms of reference of the Committee are clearly defined in the Charter of the Committee, salient features
of which are stated below:
•
•
•
•

To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors;
To review quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements;
To review the internal control systems and internal audit function;
To monitor compliance of statutory requirements.

Meeting during 2020
The Audit Committee met four times during the year. The attendance of the members at these meetings is
stated in the table on page 69 of the annual report. The Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Internal Auditor
attended all meetings.
Role of the Committee
The Audit Committee assists the Board to effectively carry out its supervisory oversight responsibilities on
financial reporting and compliance, internal controls and risks, internal and external audit functions of the
Company.
The Committee ensured compliance with its terms of reference. The Committee has concluded its annual
review of the operations of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 and reports that:
• The Committee reviewed and approved the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company
and recommended them for approval of the Board;
• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied and all applicable accounting
standards were followed in preparation of the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2020, which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows, and changes in
equity of the Company;
• The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have reviewed the financial statements of the
Company. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the financial statements,
accuracy of reporting and compliance with regulations and applicable accounting standards;
• Review process of financial statements by the audit committee also include detailed consideration of
related matters and issues which were dealt in accordance with applicable accounting and reporting
standards. Contents of the 2020 External Audit Report are in accordance with the applicable Regulations
in Pakistan; the auditors have issued unmodified audit reports in respect of the said 2020 financial
statements.
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• Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;
• Proper, accurate and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company;
• The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy.
• The Company has a proper approach in place for risk management whereby identification and
mitigation of relevant risks take place. Details regarding risk identified by the Company and mitigating
strategies are included in respective section of this annual report and summary is mentioned in the
directors’ report. The audit committee has reviewed this information;
• The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved all related party transactions;
• The Committee has reviewed arrangements for staff and management for reporting to the Committee
concerns, if any, about improprieties in financial and other matters, and remedial and mitigating
measures. No cases of complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or audit matters,
or whistle blowing were received by the Committee;
• Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the directors and
executives (as defined by the Board to be an employee drawing a basic salary of Rs. 1,200,000 and
above in a financial year) from dealing in the shares of the Company, prior to each Board meeting
involving announcement of interim / final results, distribution to shareholders or any other business decision
which could materially affect the share price.
• The Company’s 2020 Annual Report is properly structured to provide all necessary information in detail yet
in a lucid way. Not only it gives financial information like state of affairs and financial performance as per
applicable accounting framework, it also enlightens through financial analysis in easy to comprehend
style. Besides the core financial information, it also covers all other necessary domains like background
details about company and its directors, comprehensive management reviews and future prospects,
stakeholder’s information and corporate governance.
Internal Audit
• The Board has effectively implemented the internal control framework through the Chief Internal Auditor
who is a qualified Certified Chartered Accountant.
• The Internal Auditor reviews the risks and control processes. It carries out reviews in accordance with the
internal audit plan approved by the Committee.
• The internal audit function has direct access to the Committee. The Committee reviews the findings and
observation of the internal audit and provides appropriate guidance.
• The Committee met with the internal audit in absence of the management.
External Audit
• The statutory auditors of the Company, A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed
their audit assignment of the Company’s financial statements and the statement of compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended December 31, 2020 and shall retire on the
conclusion of the 38th Annual General Meeting;
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• The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the external auditors. A meeting
was also held with the external auditors in absence of the management;
• The external auditors have direct access to the Audit Committee and internal audit department, hereby
ensuring the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the audit process;
• The performance, cost and independence of the external auditors is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee. Being eligible for reappointment under the listing regulations, the Committee has
recommended to the Board the reappointment of A.F. Ferguson and Co., Chartered Accountants for the
year 2021. A resolution to this effect has been proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
The Audit Committee
The Committee views that it discharged its responsibilities as per its terms of reference. A separate mechanism is in place for annual evaluation of members of the Board of Directors and its Committees.

Ms. Farah Qureshi
Chairperson, Audit Committee
May 4, 2021
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Human Resource Management (HRM)
AGTL recognizes that motivated and professional employees are an essential factor for maintaining
competitiveness and for creation of shareholder value and customer satisfaction.
The Company is committed to providing equal opportunities to all its employees, both on the job and in their
career advancement. All aspect of employment, such as recruitment, training, compensation, promotion
and transfer are free from any form of discrimination.
Performance appraisal is one of the important components of HRM. The performance management system
at AGTL continues to be an essential tool to provide regular feedback to align employee performance with
business strategy.
SUCCESSION PLANNING
Succession Planning is a proactive approach to managing talent as it involves identification of high potential
employees for anticipated future needs and the tailored development of these people so that there is a
talent pool or leadership pipeline available to meet AGTL’s demands as they arise. AGTL has formulated a
comprehensive succession plan for all key positions. Succession Planning is formally addressed by the Board
of Directors.
HARASSMENT
AGTL has a harassment policy in place and is compliant with the Protection Against Harassment of Women
at Workplace, Act 2010. No instances of harassment were reported during the year 2020.

85

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Report of the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee
Composition
The HR&R Committee appointed by and responsible to the Board comprised of two Non-Executive Directors
and one Executive Director at the year end as under:
Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Committee.
Salient terms of reference
1. Recommend human resource management policies to the Board;
2. Recommend to the Board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement benefits) of
CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit;
3. Recommend to the Board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement benefits) and
succession planning of the CEO;
4. Consideration and approval on the recommendations of CEO on such matters for key management
positions who report directly to CEO; and
5. Assess periodically the Board’s performance and the performance of the Committees of the Board.
Meeting during 2020
The Committee met 1 time during the year 2020. The attendance of the members at these meetings is
stated in the table on page 69 of the annual report.

Mr. Bernd Erich Schwendtke
Chairman, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
May 4, 2021
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Information Technology
Every aspect of management relies heavily on
information to thrive. Companies use information to
set strategies and accomplish business objectives.
AGTL is no exception and gives high importance to
MIS. It is the lifeblood of the business and ensures
that there are systems and infrastructures built to
meet the demands of business and individuals.
The hardware in use at AGTL includes: IBM RISC
Servers, CISCO Routers, 3COM and CISCO Switches
and IBM/HP Printers. Al-Ghazi Tractors also has its
website www.alghazitractors.com to facilitate
business and business partners by providing detailed
information about organization’s Vision, Mission,
Management,
Products,
Financial
Reports,
Operations and Human Resources.
Enterprise Resource Planing
AGTL places heavy reliance on its Enterprise
Resource Planning System (BaaN), which is fully
integrated incorporating Sales and Distribution,
Material Requirement Planning (MRP), Material
anagement, Manufacturing, Inventory and Finance.
In house developed applications for payroll,
warranty stock / claims, and noncomponent
purchases have been added to the system. This
application is implemented across AGTL and a high
speed communication infrastructure is in place.
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AGTL offices in Lahore, Multan & Dera Ghazi Khan
are connected to Head Office Karachi, through a
video Conferencing facility resulting in efficient and
fast communication among all departments to
achieve the Company’s objectives.
Disaster Recovery Planing
The Company gives high importance to Disaster
recovery and a Disaster Recovery Plan is in place,
which ensures minimum down- time, in case of a
major disaster. Most importantly, MIS also holds the
function of backing up vital data guaranteeing that
a business isn’t at risk of losing vital information.
Application and data back-ups are maintained at
different sites to ensure maximum security. Back-up
hardware is also available in case of failure of the
main server.
Safety and Security of IT Record
In order to safeguard data integrity, a detailed
policy on IT Security is in place. The objective is to
ensure that highest level of security is provided to the
system. Access controls are rigidly monitored based
on job descriptions. Regular training on I.T. security is
given to the employees to create awareness and
enhance the importance of I.T. Security. Software/
hardware firewalls have also been installed to block
unwanted traffic and hacking.

Strategies,
Risks and
Opportunities
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Risks and Opportunities
Risks
To achieve an informed understanding of our tolerance for risks when delivering our overall business plan, we
must be mindful that the objective of risk management is not necessarily to eliminate risk, but to ensure that
the risks we do accept remain within a predetermined level of acceptability and control while pursuing
value-enhancing opportunities. The ultimate goal of risk management within AGTL is to continually assess the
control environment to prevent and build resilience against any internal or external shocks, both anticipated
and unforeseen.
Within the automotive industry, uncertainties stem from various sources including changes in the economy,
technology, government regulations, relative prices and market dynamics.
Following are the major risks which may affect our business operations and mitigating strategies for controlling
these risks.
Financial Capital (External Source)

Risk
Exchange
Rate
Fluctuation

Working
Capital
Management

Risk level
/ Impact
High/ High

Moderate/
Moderate

Likelihood

Risk Description

Mitigation Strategy

High

It becomes challenging for
the Company to compete in
the market due to frequent
fluctuation of PKR parity
against USD.

The Company’s product has
around 93% local
components, thus reducing
the dependency on imported
material and hence reducing
negative consequences
resulting from exchange rate
fluctuations.

Moderate

Any increase in raw material
cost or increase in volume of
raw material stock or debts
may limit the avenues for
availability of sufficient
working capital.

Management has addressed
the risk of shortage of working
capital by availing the
sufficient credit lines from
different Banks in order to
meet the short-term
requirements of the
Company.

Human Capital (Internal Source)

Risk
High
Employee
turnover
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Risk level
/ Impact
Moderate/
Moderate
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Likelihood
Moderate

Risk Description
Key employees and workers
may leave the Company
causing lack of competent
workforce.

Mitigation Strategy
The Company believes in
the importance of having
the right people with the
requisite qualification, skills
and expertise to achieve its
strategic business plans.
The Company has in place
comprehensive human
resource policies and
procedures for recruitment,
compensation, staff
development and
management succession.

Manufactured Capital (External Source)

Risk

Risk level
/ Impact

Likelihood

Risk Description

Mitigation Strategy

Information
system
failure risk

Low/ Low

Low

Loss of Company data and
theft of sensitive information

A comprehensive disaster
recovery policy is in place
and addresses the underlying
risk. The Company maintains
back-up servers to recover
data in case of any disaster.
Further, the Company has
well-established disaster
recovery plan and data
backup to cope with any
unwarranted event.

Natural
Catastrophe

Low/ Low

Low

Destruction of production
facility due to natural disaster.

The Company has
comprehensive insurance
cover in case of any
catastrophic event. The
Company has taken into
consideration every possible
aspect of safety measures to
preserve the factory building
and plant.

Business
Continuity
Risk

Low/ Low

Low

The Company may be
unable or constrained to
continue business.

The Company recognizes that
quick recovery and
resumption of business
operations after a disruption
are critical to minimizing
financial, operational and
reputational impact. To
mitigate these risks, the
Company has in place a
Business Continuity Plan, which
complements its ERP
framework.

Opportunities
The Company has adequate processes and procedures in place for identifying potential gaps in the external
environment which, if the Company has adequate resource, may be exploited as opportunities to improve
performance.
Based on detailed analysis, we have identified various opportunities in the current economic landscape along
with the strategy to maximize benefits from it:
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Opportunities
Opportunity

Impact
Area

Source

Opportunity Description

Strategy to
Capitalize Opportunity

High power
tractor
market

Manufactured
Capital

Internal

The market contains a
significant potential for high
power tractors.

Under guidance of CNHi
experts a state of the art plant
equipped with advanced
technology for premium high
power tractors production is in
the planning stage.

Modernization
of AGTL plant

Manufactured
Capital

External

Most modern and
state-of-the-art machinery for
production of high quality
tractors.

The Company is in continuous
process to upgrade the plant
with efficient machinery which
will enable the company to
minimize the production cost.
Quality Assurance lab and
Store sheds are some major
projects under this strategy.

Diversification

Manufactured
Capital

Internal

A potential market for
generators, lube oil and
spare parts exist.

The Company is inclined to
diversify in the related fields
and is committed to search
all possible avenues to
maximize the pace of growth
of the Company and
Shareholders wealth.

Efficiency at
work place by
employees

Human
Capital

External

Provide congenial work
environment where
employee feels motivated
and works for the betterment
of the Company

Provide effective environment
without excessive work
pressure. Continuous training
and development of
employees. Benefit aligned
with efficient and effective
work and team
management.

BOD’s Commitment to Risk Mitigation
As a business reality, the Company is susceptible to various risks. However, through comprehensive planning
and business understanding, the Board of Directors continues to identify and mitigate actual, potential and
perceived risks.
The Board of Directors have carefully carried out a robust assessment of the principle risks facing the
Company, including those that would threaten the business model, future performance and solvency of the
Company while establishing and maintaining a control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits
and accountabilities, well implemented policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes.
Further, it is confirmed that no defaults in payments of any debts were made and that the Company has
adequate capital structure. Any deficiencies identified in the capital structure are aggressively addressed and
mitigated accordingly.
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Powers of the Board of Directors and the Management of the Company are in compliance with the
Companies Act, 2017, the Code of Corporate Governance, the Articles of Association of the Company and
guidelines and frameworks issued by professional bodies and best practices.
The Board powers include approvals for capital expenditure, disposal of fixed assets, annual business plans,
policy formulation, risk management, human resource management, donations, matters relating to health,
safety and the environment, and other matters required by law, or internal policies.
Authorizations for transactions and delegation of powers have also been defined clearly and carried out
through formalized processes keeping in view defined materiality levels.

Materiality Approach
Determination of materiality levels other than those provided under the regulations, is judgmental and varies
between organizations. In general, matters are considered to be material if, individually or in aggregate, they
are expected to significantly affect the performance of the business and profitability of the Company.
Materiality levels are reviewed periodically and are appropriately updated.
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Significant Factors Affecting the External
Environment & the Organization’s Response

FACTORS

Invariably changing external environment affects political, economic, technological, environmental and
social fronts of an organization. The volatility may impact our capability to create value. Some of these
factors and their effect on the company are discussed below:

ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSE

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
FROM LAST YEAR

DESCRIPTION

Political
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Economic

Social

• Political turbulence
and law and order
situation of the
country generally
impacts
organizations
negatively

• Economic conditions of a
country such as changes
in rupee devaluation,
interest cost, economic
growth rate, balance of
payment and natural
calamities affects the
overall organization’s
business.

• Companies have to plan
strategies to adapt to the
social trends. Such as
improvement of living
standards, price sensitive
customers, seeking value
for money behavior of
customers.

• Unstable political
environment with
the running
government facing
challenges on
various fronts.
• Inconsistent policies

• Limited farmers’ subsidies
by Govt.
• Halt of economic activities
due to COVID- 19
• Rupee devaluation
• Increased inflation rate
• Recovery in Trade deficit

• Rising customer emphasis
on aesthetics, luxury and
comfort.
• Rapid urbanization of
rural regions due to
increased access of
technology

Political environment of
the country is being
appropriately
monitored to address
changes in political
and business policies
which may have a
considerable impact
on the company’s
business.
Further, the company
duly approach the
regulators in order to
highlight the business
challenges and its
resolutions.

AGTL set out appropriate
actions to address the
changes in its business
economic environment
through efficient working
capital management.
However, decline in overall
economic conditions in
general and farmers
economic wealth in particular
may pose an adverse effect
on the company’s
performance.

Launching of Limited Editions
of tractor models with
different aesthetic features.
Further, free services and
training programs are also
arranged to facilitate
customers and create
awareness.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Technological

Legal

Environmental

• Technological factors
include technological
aspects such as
Research & Development
activity, quality of the
product, technology
incentives have a major
role in company’s
success.

• Companies are required to
abide by the laws and
regulations as laid by the
Govt. of the country in
which it operates

• Environmental factors such
as weather, climate and
climatic changes affects
the manufacturing
concerns in general and
tractor industry in
particular.

Increased demand of quality

Applicably of changes in:
• Companies Act 2017
• Finance Act, 2018
• IAS and IFRSs

• Water shortage affecting
crop yield and eventually
farmers’ economy
• Increased emphasis of the
authorities over the
environment protection
• Major concern of climate
change due to pollution

The company gives due
importance to compliance
with all the laws and regulation
applicable in its legal
environment. AGTL hires
professional associates to
ensure strict compliance to all
the applicable statues.

AGTL is committed to towards
reducing the environmental
impact and protection of
environment.
A modern Effluent Treatment
Plant is functional which treats
waste water from the factory
for utilization in Plantation
activities. All other effluents of
smoke, noise, health and
safety fully meet National
Environmental Quality
Standards (NEQS).

products due to increased
awareness owing to enhanced
usage of information medium
such as internet and smart
phones.

The company keep focusing
on technological and quality
advancements. AGTL has
recently beefed up its tractors
with excellent quality features.
Further, a state of the art fully
equipped Quality Assurance
Lab is constructed for
technologically and quality
upgraded products.
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Strategic Objectives
Overall corporate and strategic objectives of AGTL is becoming the leading Company in the tractor industry
by continuously improving quality of our tractors and hence enhancing profitability and return to shareholders.
Short Term Objective
Our short-term objective is to demonstrate a comprehensive product range which interest all the needs of
farmers.
Medium Term Objective
Our medium term objective is to continuously scale up our market share through improved customer
engagement.
Long Term Objective
Long term objective is to sustain growth in tractor business through continuous product quality improvement
and achievement of highest level of customer satisfaction.

Strategies in Place

To achieve our objectives, the management strategically strives to enhance stakeholders' value and
customer satisfaction. The shareholders’ value is maximized through return on investment, which
management believes can be achieved through revenue maximization and cost control measures.
Sales and Marketing
Sales and Marketing targets and budgets are aggressively set-forth by management to achieve
highest possible returns. The targets are backed by seriously thought-out strategies coupled with
ownership of all stakeholders and management’s commitment to ensure achievement of the
same. Major strategies devised to ensure achievement of targets are:
•
•
•

Dealers’ revamping, performance review and their profitability
Development of market Intelligence tools for informed decision making
Enhanced engagement with dealers for quality feedback

Quality Initiative
AGTL is an ISO certified company since 1994. The company has paramount focus on quality of its
tractors and a road map to achieving this objective, the company has placed several quality
control strategies.
The company invests regularly in Product Quality Development and improvements are regularly
incorporated in the tractor’s parts and production processes.
For achievement of quality objective, a number of initiatives were introduced including construction
of Quality Assurance lab, construction of store shed and a comprehensive coordinated activity was
launched in collaboration with principal CNH to add value to the production processes.
Collaboration with CNHi also included action plans and trainings and exposure of AGTL staff at CNHi
facilities to improve quality.
After Sales Services
Exceptional after sales service forms part of the Company’s long enduring strategy. The Company
puts strong focus on After Sales Service which is the basis of customer’s satisfaction. Following
strategies were introduced to achieve the After Sales Services objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

Free Service Camps
Organizing Engineer’s Club Convention
Set up of Centralized Call Center
Customer Desk Facility
Expansion of Workshops in all regions

Cost Management
With effective cost control and efficient energy management the company focuses to keep the
variable cost down adding to overall profitability.
To reduce Company’s exposure and vulnerability, linked with raw material cost, the Company is
constantly focusing on consolidation, elevation, and enhanced engagement with the component
vendors to bring economies of scale while improving Company’s profitability.
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Resource Allocation Plan
Significant resources of the Company comprise of, but not limited to, human, financial and technological
resources. We hire professional associates and technical experts who continuously strive to ensure that our
production and control processes and systems are working efficiently and effectively and are constantly
being modernized.
Further, financial resources are managed effectively through optimized credit control and efficient treasury
management, focusing on cash flow forecasting.
Our Strategy
AGTL is committed to increase revenue and it streams to optimize shareholders’ wealth and offer our best
efforts to provide optimal value to all our stakeholders for their engagement with the Company.
Human Capital
The Company’s most important asset is its human capital. The Company has in place
comprehensive human resource policies and procedures for recruitment, compensation, staff
development and management succession.
Manufactured Capital
AGTL plant manufactures New Holland (Fiat) tractors in technical collaboration with CNHI - Case
New Holland, the number one manufacturer of agricultural tractors in the world.
AGTL plant is an icon of engineering dynamics operating on high efficiency. With impregnable
Quality Control and Quality Assurance practices, quality improvement systems exist at every level.
The Company is committed to improve product quality at both incoming and assembly stages.
Financial Capital
The Company currently has a strong financial base with capital structure comprised of Rs.289.8
million share capital representing 57.9 million ordinary shares of Rs.5/- each with market
capitalization of over 21 billion.
Current short-term finance of the Company stands at Rs.3.6 billion. However, the Company
believes that with the release on sale tax refund from government authorities will help reduce
short-term finance.
The Company has also allocated sizeable amount for marketing purposes. The budget is being
provided to all department heads to further set their targets of resource allocation in line with the
Company’s objectives for effective usage of funds so allocated.
Intellectual Capital
Information Management and Information Technology is built into AGTL’s strategy. IT system plays
an important role in supporting AGTL’s current operations and its new initiatives.
Our ERP system continues to integrate all function across the Company, facilitating greater
efficiency and effectiveness of all processes and controls.
Social and relationship capital
AGTL values the stake holders, customers, employees and the investors. The management works
to ensure that all supply chain associates, dealers, shareholders and employees share in the
company’s growth and prosperity. We invest in a series of initiatives that enhance collaboration
and ongoing dialogue with our customers and vendors. We also contribute to the sustainable
growth of our communities by offering job for local skilled and unskilled manpower.
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Significant Changes in Objectives and Strategies from Previous Period
There are no major changes in the organizational overview. The Company remains well poised to capture
market opportunities and meet expectations customers. During the year, economic halt due to COVID-19
pandemic adversely affected the operations and sales. However, with reduction in number of COVID-19
cases, supportive monetary and fiscal policy and re-opening of businesses has demonstrated growth in
sales.

Critical Performance Indicators
Following are some of the critical performance indicators against stated objectives of the Company;
•

Quality product at the lowest price;

•

Efficiency and effectiveness of each production process;

•

Creating value for the shareholders;

•

Employee retention and satisfaction;

•

Compliance with laws and regulations;

•

Consistent corporate achievements and excellence;

•

Development of local community

The Company believes that these indicators will continue to be relevant in the future as well.

Liquidity Analysis and Strategies to Overcome Liquidity Problems
The management of the Company has years of experience in liquidity management. Management always
strives to maintain a strong liquidity position to ensure availability of sufficient working capital besides
identification and mitigation of cash flow risks.
Revenue receipts from sales are managed through optimized control of customer credit, in addition to
securing advance customer orders and cash sales. Regular forecasting of cash flows and aging analysis are
also carried out to maintain an optimum working capital cycle.

Significant Plans and Decisions

The Company believes in continuous corporate restructuring according to the market norms to achieve its
objectives. However, major business expansions and discontinuance need of operations will be addressed
when necessitated by circumstances.
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Key Operating and Financial Data
Quantative Data
Sales
Production

2020
12,142
12,654

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

15,719
15,400

23,933
24,823

24,423
24,091

16,206
16,005

13,385
13,584

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profitability

Revenue
11,935,172 13,992,388 19,372,522 18,871,448 12,098,828
Gross profit
2,770,502 2,544,716 4,665,484 5,259,738 3,348,741
Depreciation
81,512
80,836
70,061
59,042
58,112
Operating Profit (before investment income) 1,887,289 1,330,943 3,705,802 4,476,958 2,752,486
Investment income
40,618
17,581
29,033
108,055
125,039
Profit before taxation
1,927,907 1,348,524 3,734,835 4,585,013 2,877,525
Income tax expense
578,250
370,872 1,282,321 1,461,893
950,641
Profit for the year
1,349,657
977,652 2,452,514 3,123,120 1,926,884
Earnings before investment income,
tax and depreciation (EBITDA)
1,968,801 1,411,779 3,775,863 4,536,000 2,810,598
Manpower Cost - Direct
302,194
345,368
375,240
336,868
266,484
Manpower Cost - Indirect
283,646
287,773
303,572
236,217
217,209
Total Manpower Cost
585,840
633,141
678,812
573,085
483,693

9,636,109
2,499,478
46,147
1,967,602
424,444
2,392,046
799,763
1,592,283
2,013,749
224,434
263,981
488,415

Financial position
Fixed assets
Other non-current assets
Employee benefit prepayments
Deferred tax asset

1,066,974 1,068,382
4,941
4,757
36,197
111,756
87,090
1,219,868 1,160,229

828,804
4,696
833,500

714,732
4,660
719,392

649,897
5,818
655,715

612,208
2,913
615,121

Current assets
Current liabilities
Net working capital

3,963,576 4,315,154 5,951,957
2,849,239 4,442,078 5,299,961
1,114,337
(126,924)
651,996

5,161,939
3,670,255
1,491,684

3,988,601
1,202,327
2,786,274

5,789,546
549,079
5,240,467

Less: Non-current liabilities
Capital employed
Represented by:
Share capital
Reserves
Unappropriated profit

46,083

129,588

116,099

85,260

82,520

67,008

2,288,122

903,717

1,369,397

2,125,816

3,359,469

5,788,580

289,821
1,049,000
949,301
2,288,122

289,821
613,896
903,717

289,821
1,079,576
1,369,397

289,821
1,000,000
835,995
2,125,816

289,821
1,000,000
2,069,648
3,359,469

289,821
1,000,000
4,498,759
5,788,580

Cash Flows
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

99

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

2,123,646 1,936,798 (1,155,682) 3,827,376 3,239,509
619,833
(37,253) (303,716)
(151,004)
10,187
986,817
3,702,394
(4,708) (1,393,589) (3,713,121) (3,803,822) (4,339,794) (4,321,698)

Dupont Analysis
Return on Equity

59%
Ownership Ratio

Return on Asset

44%

26%
X

Owner Equity

Total Assets

Owner’s Equity

Asset Turnover

Net Profit Margin

5,183

2,288

2.3

11.3%

+

Total Liabilities

2,288

Total Assets

2,895

5,183

+
Non Current
Liabilities

46

Sales

Net Income

11,935

+
Current Liabilities

2,849

1,350
-

Non Current
Assets

Current Assets

Total Cost

1,220

3,964

10,586

Sales

11,935

Comments on Dupont Analysis:
Return on Equity decreased by 45% during the year i.e. from 108% in 2019 to 59% in 2020. This decrease
in mainly attributable to Increase in owner’s equity by Rs.1,384 million and decrease in total assets by
Rs.292 million coupled with increase in Return on assets by 44% as compared to last year.
Total assets decrease was mainly attributable to decrease in inventory and fixed assets resulting from
disposal of major vehicles during the year, while accumulation of general reserves & no payment of
dividends during the year resulted in increase of equity.
Asset turnover decreased by 0.3 times while net profit margin increased by 4.3% as compared to last
year mainly due to disproportionate decrease in sales as compared to decrease in total assets while
net income increased by Rs. 372m as compared to last year.
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Analysis of Financial and
Non-Financial Performance
AGTL believes in achievement of business objectives through both financial and non-financial factors. From
the financial indicators like Sales revenue, net profit, gearing and liquidity etc. to non-financial indicators like
brand image, customer centricity, shareholders satisfaction and human resource development, the
Company focuses on all the aspects to maintain sustainable growth and to timely identify key focus areas for
remedial actions and growth.
Budgets are set for both financial and non-financial factors and performance is assessed accordingly.
Overall, majority of the targets set by the Company were achieved except for few indicators in which
deviations were observed mainly due to drastic rupee devaluation, increase in raw material prices, locally as
well as imported, uncertain political scenario and overall economic slowdown in automotive industry
observed especially in the second half of the year.

Financial Indicators
Actual Results
Year 2020 had been a challenging year due to Covid-19 scenario. The Company sold 12,142 tractors during
the year 2020 as compared to 15,719 tractors sold in the year 2019. There were various factors contributing
to lower sales volume of the year as compared to that of previous year. Covid-19 scenario which ultimately
resulted in lockdowns and restricted movement resulted in weakening purchasing power of farmers, persistent
economic slowdown contributes to the most significant issues.
Despite severe difficulties, the Company continued its efforts of engaging with customers and ensuring quality
improvements and efficiencies. The Company was able to achieve after tax profit of Rs 1,349 million
translating into earnings per share (EPS) of Rs 23.28/Summarized operating performance of the Company for the current year as compared to last year is as
follows:

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Revenue

11,935,172

13,992,388

Gross profit

2,770,502

2,544,716

Profit before taxation

1,927,907

1,348,524

Income tax expense

578,250

370,872

1,349,657

977,652

Profit for the year
Production and sales volumes for the year 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020

2019
Units

Sales

12,142

15,719

Production

12,654

15,400

Budget vs Actuals:
The Company has developed a system of budgeting which enables the preparation of a challenging yet
achievable budget. The Company also performs forecasting at each quarter end to reflect the current
market situation and changes in assumptions, if any while projecting the rest of the period.
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Achievement of the Company against budgeted revenue is as under:
Revenue

(Rupees in ‘000)

Budget (9+3F)

14,144

Actual

11,935

Methods and Assumptions in Compiling Indicators
The Company has identified indicators that effectively reflect the Company’s performance and profitability.
The Company analyses its market positioning, competitors and general market conditions while compiling
key indicators.
Sales are monitored on daily basis through various management reports and future lines of actions are
decided accordingly. Gross profit, expenses, profit after tax and EPS are monitored on monthly basis to gauge
performance. For management reporting purposes, the Company has developed a mix of system based on
ERP and dashboard reports to compute various KPI’s.
An effective financial reporting system coupled with various management reports and a three layer review
system enables AGTL to report accurate, complete and reviewed information to all its stakeholders.
Non-Financial Indicators

Objective

Monitoring

Product Development

Manufactured Capital
Research and Development projects undertaken in collaboration with CNHi
to enable production of high quality tractors bearing low cost

Market Share

Challenging vendor situation and supply constraint during the second half of
the year, resulted in decline in market share

Operational Efficiency and
Effectiveness

Continuous commitment to operational effectiveness through monitoring of
production efficiency ratios and minimal production losses

Economize on Cost –
Eliminating Redundancies

Optimum utilization of resources resulting in elimination of redundant costs

Health, Safety and
Environment
Training and Education

Supplier relationship
Customer relationship

Human Capital
Effective system of horticulture and annual plantation project results in
better environment for the employees.
Continuous training of employees and workers. Monitoring training need
analysis with special focus on safety at work
Relationship Capital
Timely payment to vendors to enhance vendor confidence and reliance
Providing exquisite after sales services and support services to enhance
customer loyalty and trust worthiness
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Analysis of Financial Ratios
2020
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit ratio
Pre-tax profit ratio
Net profit to Sales
EBITDA margin to sales
Operating Leverage ratio
Return on asset
Return on Equity / Capital employed

2018

2017

2016

2015

23.21%
16.15%
11.31%
16.50%
-2.68
26.04%
58.99%

18.19%
9.64%
6.99%
10.09%
2.25
17.86%
108.18%

24.08%
19.28%
12.66%
19.49%
-6.31
36.14%
179.09%

27.87%
24.30%
16.55%
24.04%
1.10
53.10%
146.91%

27.68%
23.78%
15.93%
23.23%
1.55
41.49%
57.36%

25.94%
24.82%
16.52%
20.90%
0.85
24.86%
27.51%

1.39
0.69
0.08

0.97
0.34
0.04

1.12
0.46
0.06

1.41
0.78
0.37

3.32
2.13
1.10

10.54
6.61
4.24

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover ratio
Receivables turnover ratio
Creditors turnover ratio
Fixed assets turnover ratio
Total assets turnover ratio

3.83
2,480
28
11.19
2.30

3.64
423
26
13.10
2.56

5.05
565
22
23.37
2.86

7.37
129
22
26.40
3.21

4.89
79
18
18.62
2.61

3.30
464
11
15.74
1.

Operating Cycle
No. of days in inventory
No. of days in receivables
No. of days in payables
Operating Cycle

95
0
13
83

100
1
14
87

72
1
17
56

50
3
17
36

75
5
20
59

112
1
34
78

0.75
0.00%
0.08
0.07
14.22

0.88
10.87%
4.02
0.17
4.38

0.44
3.10%
2.90
0.12
30.74

-

-

-

-

-

-

33.26
23.28
15.95
5.76%
17.37
91.86%
1.09
21.39
1,239,854
428%

23.26
16.87
21.79
4.08%
24.50
88.93%
1.12
15.00
869,463
300%

64.43
42.31
12.90
7.14%
14.00
92.17%
1.08
39.00
2,260,604
780%

371.5
418.8
210.2
21,531
39.47
9.41
6.27%

367.5
564.0
232.0
21,302
15.59
23.57
4.59%

546.00
775.31
490.04
31,648
23.62
23.11
7.75%

Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio
Quick Ratio
Cash to current liabilities

Capital Structure Ratios
Financial leverage ratio
Weighted average cost of debt
Debt to equityt ratio (As per book value)
Debt to equityt ratio (As per market value)
Interest cover ratio
Investment / Market ratios
Pre-Tax Earning per share ( Basic and diluted) - Rs
Post -Tax Earning per share ( Basic and diluted) - Rs
Price earnings ratio
Dividend yield ratio
Dividend ratio
Dividend payout ratio
Dividend cover
Dividend per share
Dividend payout - Rs ' 000
Cash dividend - %
Market value per share - Rs
- Closing
- High
- Low
Market capitalisation - Rs Million
Breakup value per share - Rs
Market price to break up value
Earning Yield ( %)
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79.10
49.64
53.88
33.24
11.41
17.15
14.24%
13.16%
7.02
7.60
162.40% 225.61%
0.62
0.44
87.50
62.50
5,071,868 4,347,315
1750%
1500%
614.55
784.04
525.00
35,622
36.67
16.76
8.77%

570.00
718.89
378.78
33,039
57.96
9.83
5.83%

41.27
27.47
15.03
20.58%
4.86
309.43%
0.32
85.00
4,926,957
1700%
413.00
564.00
295.00
23,940
99.86
4.14
6.65%

Comments on Ratios
Profitability Ratios
The Company’s sound business performance is depicted through favorable profitability ratios over the years.
FY 2017 and 2018 witnessed giant leap forward with respect to profitability of the Company as the Company
made historic achievements in profitability and posted ever highest profits. During the year 2020, the
Company was faced with various challenges like COVID-19 and consequent lock down scenario,
deaccelerated economic activity, dwindling PKR parity against USD. Even in the midst of such a challenging
environment, the Company posted healthy profitability ratios resulting from immaculate management
growth strategies.
Liquidity and Turnover Ratios
The liquidity position has improved substantially mainly due to optimization of inventory resulting in reduced
financial cost. However, the Company ensures that it has sufficient credit lines at its disposal to keep itself
liquid and maintain its ability to pay its creditors and banks. Furthermore, the Company is working on various
measures to reduce its working capital.
Market Ratios
Market Ratios are the direct reflection of the performance of the Company. In the year 2020 market price per
share and EPS increased from last year resulting from increased profitability owing to rigorous cost discipline,
restricted price increase to vendors and other various turnaround strategies by management. AGTL has
continuously maintained a dividend yield beyond the market norms in order to compensate its shareholders
handsomely.
Capital Structure Ratios
The Company continuously monitors its capital structure and aims to keep it at its optimum level. The
Company remained debt free throughout its operation since the beginning, however, accelerated dividend
payments during years 2015-2017 and long outstanding sales tax due from government resulted in utilization
of Overdraft facility from banks in 2018.
Capital structure ratios went significantly downwards in 2020 as compared to last year mainly due increase in
equity owing to accumulation of general reserve amounting to Rs. 1 billion and no dividend payments during
the year.
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Graphical Analysis
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Six Years Horizontal Analysis
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

649,897
5,818
-

612,208
2,913
-

(Rupees in ‘000)

BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Long-term loans and deposits
Employee benefit prepayments
Deferred tax asset

1,066,974 1,068,382

828,804

714,732

4,757
87,090

4,696
-

4,660
-

Inventories
Trade receivables
Loan and advances
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Interest accrued
Other receivables
Taxation - payments less provision
Refunds due from the Government
Other financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Total assets

2,004,517 2,786,893
9,624
86,561
93,216
24,925
7,398
197
8,225
108,134
157,786
347,462
1,450,847
773,334
230,518
189,093
5,183,444 5,475,383

3,507,588
56,606
132,337
43,305
1
12,964
108,040
1,797,206
293,910
6,785,457

2,321,164 1,427,617
12,023
279,759
201,688
94,042
11,871
6,119
947
4,307
11,972
40,849
40,075
1,221,688
819,138
1,340,511 1,316,770
5,881,331 4,644,316

2,149,374
27,759
62,048
6,821
61,114
38,411
70,828
1,017,953
25,000
2,330,238
6,404,667

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

2,849,239 4,442,078
46,083
129,588
2,895,322 4,571,666

5,299,961
116,099
5,416,060

3,670,255 1,202,327
85,260
82,520
3,755,515 1,284,847

549,079
67,008
616,087

Capital employed

2,288,122

903,717

1,369,397

2,125,816 3,359,469

5,788,580

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

289,821
1,998,301
2,288,122

289,821
613,896
903,717

289,821
1,079,576
1,369,397

289,821
289,821
1,835,995 3,069,648
2,125,816 3,359,469

289,821
5,498,759
5,788,580

11,935,172 13,992,388 19,372,522 18,871,448 12098828
9,164,670 11,447,672 14,707,038 13,611,710 8,750,087
2,770,502 2,544,716 4,665,484 5,259,738 3,348,741

9,636,109
7,136,631
2,499,478

4,941
36,197
111,756

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

221,904
263,946
322,675
296,763
2,225,923 1,984,007

276,950
305,425
4,083,109

240,830
162,088
237,798
250,336
4,781,110 2,936,317

111,907
297,194
2,090,377

Other income
Other operating expenses

58,798
61,423
211,025
298,443
2,073,696 1,746,987

61,902
284,608
3,860,403

144,076
153,929
339,244
211,703
4,585,942 2,878,543

480,052
177,283
2,393,146

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

145,789
398,463
1,927,902 1,348,524

125,568
3,734,835

929
1,018
4,585,013 2,877,525

1,100
2,392,046

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

578,250
1,349,657

1,282,321
2,452,514

1,461,893
950,641
3,123,120 1,926,884

799,763
1,592,283

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

370,872
977,652

Six Years Horizontal Analysis
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

(Increase / (decrease) from preceeding year in Rupees in ‘000)

BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Long-term loans and deposits
Employee benefit prepayments
Deferred tax asset
Inventories
Trade receivables
Loan and advances
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Interest accrued
Other receivables
Taxation - payments less provision
Refunds due from the Government
Other financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Total assets

(1,408)
184
36,197
24,666

239,578
61
87,090

114,072
36
-

(782,376) (720,695) 1,186,424
(9,624)
(46,982)
44,583
(6,655)
(39,121)
(69,351)
17,527
(35,907)
31,434
197
(1)
(946)
(99,909)
95,170
992
(189,676) 239,422
67,965
677,513 (1,023,872)
575,518
41,425
(104,817) (1,046,601)
(291,939) (1,310,074)
904,126

64,835
(1,158)
-

37,689
2,905
-

145,457
(42,800)
782
-

893,547 (721,757)
(46,937)
(267,736) 252,000
13,963
107,646
31,994
(16,748)
5,752
(702)
(25,398)
(3,360)
(56,807)
27,128
(28,877)
2,438
32,262
40,075
(70,828)
70,828
402,550 (198,815)
(263,121)
(25,000) (1,884,970)
23,741 (1,013,468) (1,594,471)
1,237,015 (1,760,351) (3,584,025)

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

(1,592,839)
(83,505)
(1,676,344)

(857,883) 1,629,706
13,489
30,839
(844,394) 1,660,545

2,467,928
2,740
2,470,668

653,248
15,512
668,760

(800,213)
(20,897)
(821,110)

Capital employed

1,384,405

(465,680)

(756,419) (1,233,653) (2,429,111) (2,762,915)

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

1,384,405
1,384,405

(465,680)
(465,680)

(756,419) (1,233,653) (2,429,111) (2,762,915)
(756,419) (1,233,653) (2,429,111) (2,762,915)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

(2,057,216) (5,380,134)
501,074
(2,283,002) (3,259,366) 1,095,328
225,786 (2,120,768)
(594,254)

6,772,620 2,462,719
4,861,623 1,613,456
1,910,997
849,263

855,424
624,089
231,335

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

(42,042)
(13,004)
25,912
(8,662)
241,916 (2,099,102)

36,120
67,627
(698,001)

78,742
(12,538)
1,844,793

50,181
(46,858)
845,940

10,444
93,526
127,365

Other income
Other operating expenses

(2,625)
(479)
(87,418)
13,835
326,709 (2,113,416)

(82,174)
(54,636)
(725,539)

(9,853)
127,541
1,707,399

(326,123)
34,420
485,397

22,858
10,383
139,840

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

(252,674) 272,895
579,383 (2,386,311)

124,639
(850,178)

(89)
1,707,488

(82)
485,479

(269)
140,109

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

207,378
(911,449)
372,005 (1,474,862)

(179,572)
(670,606)

511,252
1,196,236

150,878
334,601

122,570
17,539
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Six Years Vertical Analysis
2020

2020

(Rupees in ‘000)

%

2019
(Rupees in ‘000)

2019

2018

2018

%

(Rupees in ‘000)

%

BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Long-term loans and deposits
Employee benefit prepayments
Deferred tax asset

1,066,974
4,941
36,197
111,756

46.63%
0.00%
0.22%
1.58%
4.88%

1,068,382
4,757
87,090

118.22%
0.53%
9.64%

828,804
4,696
-

60.52%
0.34%
-

Inventories
2,004,517
Trade receivables
Loan and advances
86,561
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
24,925
Interest accrued
197
Other receivables
8,225
Taxation - payments less provision
157,786
Refunds due from the Government
1,450,847
Other financial assets
Cash and bank balances
230,518
Total assets
5,183,444

87.61%
0.00%
3.78%
1.09%
0.01%
0.36%
6.90%
63.41%
0.00%
10.07%
226.54%

2,786,893
9,624
93,216
7,398
108,134
347,462
773,334
189,093
5,475,383

308.38%
1.06%
10.31%
0.82%
0.00%
11.97%
38.45%
85.57%
0.00%
20.92%
605.87%

3,507,588
56,606
132,337
43,305
1
12,964
108,040
1,797,206
293,910
6,785,457

256.14%
4.13%
9.66%
3.16%
0.00%
0.95%
7.89%
131.24%
0.00%
21.46%
495.51%

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

2,849,239
46,083
2,895,322

124.52%
2.01%
126.54%

4,442,078
129,588
4,571,666

491.53%
14.34%
505.87%

5,299,961
116,099
5,416,060

387.03%
8.48%
395.51%

Capital employed

2,288,122

100.00%

903,717

100.00% 1,369,397

100.00%

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

289,821
1,998,301
2,288,122

12.67%
87.33%
100.00%

289,821
613,896
903,717

32.07%
67.93%
100.00%

289,821
1,079,576
1,369,397

21.16%
78.84%
100.00%

100.00% 19,372,522
81.81% 14,707,038
18.19% 4,665,484

100.00%
75.92%
24.08%

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
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11,935,172
9,164,670
2,770,502

100.00% 13,992,388
76.79% 11,447,672
23.21% 2,544,716

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

221,904
322,675
2,225,923

1.86%
2.70%
18.65%

263,946
296,763
1,984,007

1.89%
2.12%
14.18%

276,950
305,425
4,083,109

1.43%
1.58%
21.08%

Other income
Other operating expenses
Finance cost
Profit before taxation

58,798
211,025
2,073,696
145,789
1,927,902

0.49%
1.77%
17.37%
1.22%
16.15%

61,423
298,443
1,746,987
398,463
1,348,524

0.44%
2.13%
12.49%
2.85%
9.64%

61,902
284,608
3,860,403
125,568
3,734,835

0.32%
1.47%
19.93%
0.65%
19.28%

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

578,250
1,349,657

4.84%
11.31%

370,872
977,652

2.65%
6.99%

1,282,321
2,452,514

6.62%
12.66%

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Six Years Vertical Analysis
2017

2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

%

2016
(Rupees in ‘000)

2016

2015

2015

%

(Rupees in ‘000)

%

BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Long-term loans and deposits
Employee benefit prepayments
Deferred tax asset

714,732
4,660
-

33.62%
0.03%
-

649,897
5,818
-

19.35%
0.03%
-

612,208
2,913
-

10.58%
0.03%
-

Inventories
2,321,164
Trade receivables
12,023
Loan and advances
201,688
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
11,871
Interest accrued
947
Other receivables
11,972
Taxation - payments less provision
40,075
Refunds due from the Government
1,221,688
Other financial assets
Cash and bank balances
1,340,511
Total assets
5,881,331

109.19% 1,427,617
0.57%
279,759
9.49%
94,042
0.56%
6,119
0.04%
4,307
0.56%
40,849
1.89%
57.47%
819,138
0.00%
63.06% 1,316,770
276.66% 4,644,316

42.50%
8.33%
2.80%
0.18%
0.13%
1.22%
0.00%
24.38%
0.00%
39.20%
138.25%

2,149,374
27,759
62,048
6,821
61,114
38,411
70,828
1,017,953
25,000
2,330,238
6,404,667

37.13%
0.48%
1.07%
0.12%
1.06%
0.66%
1.22%
17.59%
0.43%
40.26%
110.64%

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

3,670,255
85,260
3,755,515

172.65% 1,202,327
4.01%
82,520
176.66% 1,284,847

35.79%
2.46%
38.25%

549,079
67,008
616,087

9.49%
1.16%
10.64%

Capital employed

2,125,816

100.00%

3,359,469

100.00%

5,788,580

100.00%

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

289,821
1,835,995
2,125,816

13.63%
289,821
86.37% 3,069,648
100.00% 3,359,469

8.63%
91.37%
100.00%

289,821
5,498,759
5,788,580

5.01%
94.99%
100.00%

18,871,448
13,611,710
5,259,738

100.00% 12,098,828
72.13% 8,750,087
27.87% 3,348,741

100.00%
72.32%
27.68%

9,636,109
7,136,631
2,499,478

100.00%
74.06%
25.94%

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

240,830
237,798
4,781,110

1.28%
162,088
1.26%
250,336
25.34% 2,936,317

1.34%
2.07%
24.27%

111,907
297,194
2,090,377

1.16%
3.08%
21.69%

Other income
Other operating expenses
Finance cost
Profit before taxation

144,076
339,244
4,585,942
929
4,585,013

0.76%
153,929
1.80%
211,703
24.30% 2,878,543
0.00%
1,018
24.30% 2,877,525

1.27%
1.75%
23.79%
0.01%
23.78%

480,052
177,283
2,393,146
1,100
2,392,046

4.98%
1.84%
24.84%
0.01%
24.82%

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

1,461,893
3,123,120

7.75%
950,641
16.55% 1,926,884

7.86%
15.93%

799,763
1,592,283

7.72%
16.52%

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
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Comments on Horizontal & Vertical Analysis
Statement of Profit or Loss
Sales Revenue
The Company has demonstrated steady growth in revenue every year. However, revenue in 2020 has
decreased by 15% mainly due to decreased in sales volume owing to overall decrease in tractor market
affected by COVID-19. AGTL management to sell 12,142 tractors during the current year as compare to
15,719 sold in 2019.
Gross Profit
The gross margin of the Company has remained under pressure during last few years owing to significant
rupee devaluation, but Lean management, rigorous cost discipline and other various turnaround strategies
implemented by management assisted in achieving an implausible Gross Profit during the current year. GP%
of the company stands at 23% as compared to 18% last year.
Overheads
The Company strongly believes in cost saving initiatives and effective controls over expenditures to curtail its
expenses. Annual growth of overheads, from 2015 to 2020, exhibited an increase of 6%, which is mainly
attributable to increased inflation observed from year on year basis.
Finance Cost
Finance cost decreased significantly during the year as compared to previous years as a result of deaccelerated utilization of short-term borrowing resulting from immaculate working capital management policies
introduced by management. Decrease in borrowing rates by State Bank of Pakistan also resulted in
decreased finance cost.
Other Income
Other income mainly represents income from investments. A declining trend in other income is mainly due to
payment of extra ordinary dividends from the year 2015 onwards. This ultimately resulted in reduced investments in the financial market and hence reduced investment income.
Profitability
2020 has proved to be a very challenging for automobile / tractor market mainly due to Covid-19 scenario.
Despite several challenges amid Covid-19 and lockdown scenario, the Company was able to achieve a
profit after tax of Rs.1,349 million as compared to Rs. 977 million in 2019 i.e. an increase of 38%. The increase
is mainly due to increase in GP% owing to cost management strategies implemented by management to
control the raw material cost including deferring cost price increase to vendors.
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Statement of Financial Position
Equity and Reserves
Equity and reserves have increased as compared to last year mainly due to increased profits made during
the current year as well as no payment of dividends to the stakeholders.
Fixed Assets
Fixed assets of the Company grew over past six years from Rs.612 million in 2015 to Rs. 1,066 million in 2020.
The increase is mainly attributable to capitalization of various machinery related to Quality Lab, Store sheds
and other additions to fixed assets related to employee benefits.
Stock in trade
The Company makes all efforts to maintain raw material and components inventory at safety stock levels to
minimize production disruptions due to supply chain issues of auto sector. Notable decline in inventory as at
Dec 31, 2020 was mainly due parking of fewer tractors as at year end owing to better planning and recording
of aging based provision as per Al Futtaim policy from 2019 onwards.
Refunds due from the Government
This represents sales tax refunds arising due to difference in the rate of input tax @ 17% and the output tax @
5%. Significant amount of sales tax refund remained outstanding from the Government at year end 2020.
Refund claims totaled Rs.1,450 million which represents a significant increase of 88% as compared to last
year. This increase is due to no recovery / release of refund from Government during the current year as compare to Rs. 2 Billion received in 2019.
Cash and bank balances
High dividend payouts from year 2015 onwards have resulted in utilization of short-term finances from bank to
cater the working capital requirement. Cash in bank amounted to Rs.230 million while short term borrowing
from bank amounted to Rs.1.58 billion.
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Quarterly Analysis
1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Annual

Revenue

2,682,074

3,026,395

3,474,575

2,752,128

11,935,172

Cost of sales

(2,185,467)

(2,406,294)

(2,612,760)

(1,960,149)

(9,164,670)

496,607

620,101

861,815

791,979

2,770,502

18.5%

20.5%

24.8%

28.8%

23.2%

Distribution expenses

(58,367)

(63,031)

(54,863)

(45,643)

(221,904)

Administrative expenses

(74,289)

(117,738)

(76,676)

(53,972)

(322,675)

(132,656)

(180,769)

(131,539)

(99,615)

(544,579)

6,573

5,544

32,887

13,794

58,798

(50,538)

(39,502)

(89,868)

(31,117)

(211,025)

319,986

405,374

673,295

675,041

2,073,696

(87,052)

(29,339)

(13,841)

(15,557)

(145,789)

Profit before taxation

232,934

376,035

659,454

659,484

1,927,907

Income tax expense

(66,931)

(106,487)

(205,988)

(198,844)

(578,250)

166,003

269,548

453,466

460,640

1,349,657

6.2%

8.9%

13.1%

16.7%

11.3%

Gross profit
Gross profit %

Other income
Other operating expenses
Operating Profit
Finance cost

Profit for the year

100
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Sales
Quarter 1
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Gross Profit
Quarter 2

34

34

34

34

20

20

12

12

Profit Before Tax
Quarter 3

Net Profit
Quarter 4

Sales Rs. 11,935.2 Million

Q1 Rs. 2,682 Million
Q2 Rs. 3,026.4 Million
Q3 Rs.

22.5%

25.4%

29.1%
3,474.6 Million

Q4 Rs. 2,752.1 Million

23.1%

Gross Profit Rs. 2,770.5 Million

Q1 Rs. 496.61 Million
Q2 Rs. 620.10 Million
Q3 Rs. 861.82 Million
Q4 Rs. 791.98 Million

17.9%

22.4%

31.1%

28.6%

Various challenges including overall economic
slow-down, currency devaluation, locust attacks,
COVID-19 driven supplies disruptions etc.
impacted tractor market in first and second
quarter and led to its sharp shrinkage of 32% versus
SPLY. With the start of third quarter, things started to
improve as a result of Company’s persistent
marketing efforts and positive agriculture related
cash flows. It helped in building sales momentum
as AGTL achieved the highest sales revenue in the
third quarter in line with sales volume.

The gross profit was highest in the third quarter in line
with sales revenue and overall economic stability.
The increase in raw material prices, exchange
devaluation and other inflationary factors affected
the gross profit for first half. The effect of increase in
selling price coupled with restricted price increase
passed onto vendors started to reflect positively from
third quarter onwards thus increasing the gross profit
for the whole year.

Profit Before Tax Rs. 1,927.9 Million

Profit After Tax Rs. 1,349.66 Million

Q1 Rs. 232.93 Million
Q2 Rs. 376.04 Million
Q3 Rs. 659.45 Million
Q4 Rs. 659.48 Million

12.1%

19.5%

34.2%

34.2%

PBT remained consistent with the gross profit as
despite testing economic times the Company
kept effective controls over operating expenses
and performed exceptionally well on balance
sheet health improvements and effective working
capital management which resulted in sustainable
free cash flows’ generation, optimal inventory
levels’ and an improved debt to equity ratios, thus
also reducing the finance cost. All the above
measures supported the Company to arrive at the
margin of 11.3%

Q1 Rs. 166.00 Million
Q2 Rs. 269.55 Million
Q3 Rs. 453.47 Million
Q4 Rs. 460.64 Million

12.3%

20%

33.6%

34.1%

PAT followed the similar trend as that of PBT. This
translates into Earning per share of Rs. 23.28 for the
year.
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Direct Cash Flow Statement
2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers

12,024,417

14,051,549

(8,348,991)

(11,985,613)

Workers Funds

(125,380)

(158,954)

Income tax paid

(413,240)

(727,824)

Sales tax refund / (payment)

(677,513)

1,023,872

Finance Cost paid

(234,928)

(359,256)

Retirement benefits

(105,411)

(26,671)

4,691

119,694

2,123,646

1,936,797

Fixed capital expenditure

(94,945)

(320,631)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

15,616

879

Reurn on bank deposits

40,421

17,582

1,656

(1,546)

(37,252)

(303,716)

(4,708)

(1,393,589)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

2,081,685

239,492

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

(3,439,803)

(3,679,296)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(1,358,119)

(3,439,803)

Cash paid to suppliers / service providers and employees

Loans, deposits and other operating income - net
Net cash (used) / generated from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) / decrease in long-term loans
Net cash (used) / generated from investing activities
CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
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Free Cash Flows
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit before taxation
Adjustment of non cash items
working capital changes
Net cash generated from operating
activities
Capital expenditure

1,927,907

1,348,524

3,734,835

204,542

475,355

175,568

(47,148)

(33,327)

(339,357)

(8,803)

112,919 (5,066,085)

(710,489)

395,311

(1,432,856)

2,123,646

1,936,798 (1,155,682)

3,827,376 3,239,509

619,833

(94,945)

Free Cash flows

2,028,701

(320,631)

(184,195)

1,616,167 (1,339,877)

4,585,013 2,877,525

(129,451)

2,392,046

(95,875)

(191,609)

3,697,925 3,143,634

428,224

Comments :
Increase in free cash flows is mainly due to increase profitability and reduce capital expenditure during the year.

4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
0
(1,000)
(2,000)
2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020
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Statement of Value Addition
2020
(Rupees in ‘000)

2019
%

(Rupees in ‘000)

%

Wealth Generated
Sales
Other income

11,935,172
58,798

99.5%
0.5%

13,992,388
61,423

99.6%
0.4%

11,993,970

100%

14,053,811

100%

9,187,686

77%

11,692,867

83%

To employees as remuneration

585,840

5%

633,141

5%

To government as tax

578,250

5%

370,872

3%

WPPF and WWF

147,680

1%

109,268

1%

1,239,854

10%

869,463

6%

254,659

2%

378,200

3%

Distribution of Wealth
Cost of sales & overheads (excluding remuneration)

To shareholders as dividend
Cash Retained within the business

11,993,970

100%

14,053,811

Cost of sales & overheads

77%

To government as tax

5%

WPPF and WWF

1%

To shareholders as dividend

10%

To employees as remuneration 5%
Retained within the business
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2%

100%

Economic Value Added
2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Net Operating Profit after Tax

1,495,446

1,376,115

(134,109)

(51,025)

Economic Value Added

1,361,337

1,325,090

Total Assets

5,183,444

5,475,383

Current Liabilities

(2,849,239)

(4,442,078)

Invested Capital

2,334,205

1,033,305

5.75%

4.94%

134,109

51,025

Cost of Capital

WACC
Cost of Capital

6000
2020

4000

2019

2000
Current
Liabilities

0
-2000

Net Operating
Profit after Tax

Economic
Value Added

Total Assets

-4000
-6000

Comments on Economic Value Added
Economic value addition has increase over last year mainly on account on increase operating profit as
compared to last year. The Company has significantly reduced WACC in current year as compared to 2019
mainly on account of reduce cost of equity owing to no dividend per share in the current period.
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Summary of Statement of
Cash Flows-Last Six Years
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Net cash generated from / (used in)
operating activities

2,123,647

Net cash generated from / (used in)
investing activities

(37,254)

Net cash generated from / (used in)
financing activities

1,936,798 (1,155,682)
(303,716)

(151,004)

3,827,376 3,239,509
10,187

986,817

619,833
3,702,394

(4,708) (1,393,589) (3,713,121) (3,803,822) (4,339,794) (4,321,698)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash
and cash equivalents

2,081,685

Cash and cash equivalents as at the
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the
end of the year

239,493 (5,019,807)

33,741

(113,468)

529

(3,439,803) (3,679,296) 1,340,511

1,306,770 1,420,238

1,419,709

(1,358,118) (3,439,803) (3,679,296)

1,340,511 1,306,770

1,420,238

5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
0
(1,000)
(2,000)
(3,000)
(4,000)
(5,000)
2020

2019

Operating activities
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2018

2017

Invesmenting activities

2016

Financial activities

2015

Comments on Cash Flow
The Company monitors its cash inflows and outflows on a daily basis. Cash management and investment
strategies are then planned to maximize returns. Operating cash flows witnessed high growth in 2020 mainly
on account of optimization of inventory and increase profitability during the current year.
Net cash used in investing activities depicts cash utilization on account of fixed capital expenditure.
Moreover, in current year fixed capital expenditures mainly represented additions related to product
development, quality enhancement and staff wellbeing. Further the trend also depicts increase in return on
investment over the period mainly on account of increased investment.
Cash outflow from financing activities represents dividend payments which has decreased over the last year
as no dividend payment was made during the year 2020 as compared to Rs.1.4 billion in 2019.
For the past few years the Company has obtained a notable value of running finance facility to ensure
smooth business operations. Funded finance facility from difference banks as at 31st Dec, 2020 stood at
Rs.4.5 billion.
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis
Company's Share price is interlinked with the Company's financial performance and has positive correlation
with the factors influencing the Company's performance.
In the prevailing business scenario, management considers the following factors to which share price of the
Company may be sensitive.
AGRICULTURE
Pakistan’s economy is predominantly agricultural in character. Almost 62% of the country’s population
abodes in rural areas, and is linked with agriculture for their livelihood. This sector plays a pivotal role in the
performance of the Company. Agricultural growth is contingent on crop acreage, weather conditions, availability of irrigation water & farm inputs, and support prices. Favorable agricultural factors mean a boost can
be seen in company’s sale and thus ultimately increasing company’s profitability and share price.
GOVERNMENT DECISIONS AND POLICIES
Government decisions on crop prices, taxes, subsidized tractor schemes etc. are important drivers of the
Company’s share prices. Decisions favourable to the overall agricultural industry also creates positive vibes in
the tractor industry which ultimately leads to increase in share price, whilst decisions to the contrary have a
negative impact on share price.
PLANT OPERATIONS
Stability of plant operations is of paramount importance. Stable plant operations allow for higher production
and add to the profitability of the Company which can positively affect the share price.
VARIATION IN MATERIAL COSTS
Being a manufacturing concern, material cost comprises of a significant portion of variable cost. Any
increase in material costs impacts the gross profit and results in reduced profits. This may adversely affect the
share price.
LAW AND ORDER
Political uncertainty makes business skittish and jeopardizes economic and business activity. Production suffers
because of supply chain issues arising out of law and order problems.
EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION
The Company is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations since some of the raw materials are imported by the
Company. Continuous depreciation of Pak Rupee can adversely affect the financial performance of the
Company.
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Segmental Review of Business
MARKET SEGMENT/SHARE
Agriculture sector is regarded as lifeline of Pakistan’s economy as it accounts for an important part of the
country’s GDP and employs bulk of the total work force.
This sector has in general recorded a growth as against the previous year. During 2020 when overall economy
was largely affected by COVID-19 the tractor industry witnessed a minor decrease of 4% only in the calendar
year 2020 as compared to the previous year.
According to published numbers, 39,258 tractors were sold during the current period as against 41,156 last
year. AGTL is the second largest player in the tractor industry in Pakistan. Due to extremely challenging vendor
situation and supply constraint during the second half of the year, AGTL managed to achieve market share
of 31%.

OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Company remained principally engaged in the manufacture and/or sale of agricultural tractors,
implements and spare parts. The Company also imported first of its kind New Holland Brand Combine
Harvesters, Balers, and 95 HP tractors into Pakistan on exploratory basis.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

Tractor Industry
AGTL

31%

Tractor Industry 69%
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Sustainability and
Corporate Social
Responsibility
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Highlights of Various Sustainability
Aspects of AGTL
AGTL, with its plant located in Dera Ghazi Khan is a
perfect example of Sustainability & Corporate Social
Responsibility. The plant, the staff town, and the allied
hub of activities that gravitate around AGTL have
transformed the social fabric of the entire region.
What began by pitching our tents in the parch desert
has
contributed
to
sustained
economic
development of the entire community and the
society at large. Offering ample employment
opportunities, a staff town has been built adjacent to
the manufacturing plant full of amenities such as
hospital, fair price shop, sports club etc. The plant
with a capacity to produce 30,000 tractors per
annum in a single shift is a vibrant business center
which has created thousands of jobs by way of
transportation activities, workshops, vendor shops
and a host of other developments. The Company
has directly contributed to human values and the
quality of life of the whole region.
REVERSE OSMOSIS PLANT
Reverse Osmosis plant has been installed in DGK in
year 2017 which has improved the machinery life of
different tractor manufacturing processes as well as
working efficiency of tractor components. Drinking
water points from RO plant have also been provided
around the plant premises where filtered drinking
water is available for residents of the surroundings.

RE-USE AND RE-CYCLING
In addition to the above, different methods are used
to reduce waste. The principle is: Reduce, Re-use
and Re-cycle.
• Under an agreement with suppliers, components
rejected on line are returned. These include
defective castings, forgings, sheet metals, wires,
metal scraps, paper board cartons, wood,
plastic parts, PVC parts, etc. These are all
materials which are recycled and reprocessed
into new materials. These materials are collected
separately from general waste using dedicated
places in the factory.
• The assembly process at AGTL is such that no
waste is produced through industrial metabolism.
•

Well-designed septic tanks have been built in the
factory to take care of the water that is used for
washing the components and in the paint shops.
These pre-treat the waste water before it enters
the disposal areas where natural processes are
expected to take care of the final treatment.
Solids settle to the bottom of the tanks and form
a layer of sludge which is removed once it gets
filled – in several years. The sludge is auctioned.

• Oils refuse from testing of engines are also sold
and recycled for use as furnace oil.
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES
AGTL is committed to transforming our operations
towards reducing the environmental impact and
protection of environment. A modern state of the art
Effluent Treatment Plant is functional which treats
waste water from the factory for useful utilization in
Plantation. All other effluents of smoke, noise, health
and safety fully meet National Environmental Quality
Standards (NEQS).

ENERGY SAVING MEASURES
Considering the energy crisis being faced by the
country and in an effort to reducing environmental
impact, the Company has installed energy efficient
roof tops in the plant, thus reducing the
consumption of electricity with savings in energy
cost. Further, burners in paint shops and tractor body
line have been automated to ensure temperature
control. The Company has also converted burners
from HSD fuel to LDO fuel. This has resulted in fuel
savings, thus reducing environmental impact and
improving financial efficiency.

PAPERLESS ENVIRONMENT
Recognizing the importance of a paperless
environment, efforts are made to maximize the use
of digital storage and communication methods.
Employees are also encouraged to reduce print
jobs and to reuse paper.

Other energy saving methods used includes
replacement of tube lights with energy efficient LED
lights and installation of flow meters on burners to
regulate fuel consumption.
Conventional air conditioning units have been
replaced with energy saving units which use
environment friendly gas.
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PLANTATION
Each year we add to the plantation at the AGTL Plant
and staff town in DGK. In 2020, over 1000 plants
were planted adding to the 4000+ trees which have
been planted over the last many years. AGTL is also
participating in the government led Clean and
Green Pakistan drive. All employees and dignitaries
visiting plant are also encouraged to plant a tree.

FUEL EFFICIENCY
To align our environmental strategy with our
products, the Company has improved the design of
cylinder head and Fuel Injection Pumps used in its
tractors to ensure fuel efficiency and minimize
smoke.
HEALTH AND SAFETY
From production of products which can be used
‘safely’ by the customers, Health and Safety Policy
covers an action plan for occupational safety,
occupational illness, conforming to labour laws for
physical and psychological health of all employees,
friendly working hours, provision of comprehensive
insurance to all, ambulance service, dispensary
service, provision of clean water through filtration
plants, recreation facilities at the staff town,
firefighting, demarcation of emergency exits and
twenty four hours security for the plant and residents
of the staff town.

PANDEMIC POLICY
Given the developing situation of the coronavirus in
Pakistan from March 2020, AGTL established various
strict policies to control potential spread of
coronavirus. The company took the several
measures, including:

• Installation of sanitization tunnels at the all entry
gates.
• Provision of sanitizers through out.

• Development and Installation of COVID-19
awareness boards and posters for employees
and visitors.
• Monitoring of body temperature of all entrants
with non-contact infrared thermometers at
entrance gates.
• Installed hand washing facilities at entrance and
work stations.
• Compulsory use of face masks to employees
and visitors to ensure their health safety at work
place.
• Enforcement of hand wash at gate by every
entrant.
• Enforcement of maintenance of social distance
of 6 feet as advised by World Health Organization
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• Conducting COVID-19 tests along
quarantine period for suspected cases.

with

• Deep cleaning and disinfection of work stations.

LABOUR / MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
The management and labour of AGTL enjoy cordial
relations. Weekly meetings are held with Collective

• Initiation of work from home facility for all business
support staff with necessary IT arrangements to
ensure smooth operations.
• Conducting of online meetings for business
activities and key decisions.
• Strict compliance with Government SOPs at
factory to prevent spread of the virus.
With the help of above mentioned timely and
practical actions, Company was able to reduce
short-term risks to the health and safety of
employees and long-term costs to the businesses.
Polio workers also visited the AGTL staff town to
provide polio drops to under age children’s.

A Dengue awareness programme has been
launched. Employees were informed of the
preventive measures against dengue virus and
malaria fever. Pamphlets and charts have been
displayed throughout the plant and staff town.
Dengue spray was also arranged through Health
Department DGK

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
AGTL has contributed Rs. 413 million towards the
national exchequer on account of government
levies and taxes.

Bargaining Agent (CBA) to discuss and resolve all
issues. AGTL is an equal opportunity employer.
EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL PERSONS
AGTL utilizes the services of special persons for its
production operations at DGK.
CONSUMER PROTECTION MEASURES
AGTL’s uncompromising commitment is to provide
world-class tractors at the lowest price, to satisfy
customers on consistent basis. The manufacturing
plant is state of the art unit which has a capacity to
produce 30,000 tractors per annum in a single shift.
The plant operates on high efficiency with negligible
waste. Our tractors are manufactured from
nonhazardous material. We have discarded the use
of all lead based paints. All manufacturing materials
are procured from reputable suppliers and conform
to our quality standards. All tractors are tested before
delivery. Customer rights and privacy is important to
AGTL. No complaints were received regarding
breach of customer privacy. The Company offers
two free after sales service for its tractors. Warranty
period is 14 months or 1200 hours, whichever comes
first.
BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES
The Company actively participates in the fight
against all forms of corruption, fully complying with
principles of fairness, transparency and integrity. To
ensure that highest standards are met,
anti-corruption statement has been included in the
code of ethics signed by all the directors and
employees. A whistle blowing policy is also in palace
to detect and deter wrongdoings. The Company
also has a well documented harassment policy.
QUALITY ASSURANCE
With disciplined focus on all quality management
systems, AGTL is committed to remain at par with
best international practices, quality standards,
performance
requirements,
and
product
specifications of CNHI. Quality is monitored at every
level of production.
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The Company has invested for improvement of quality of AGTL’s products through construction of quality lab
while training of mechanics, setting up of call center for efficient customer support and new modern paint
shop are also part of the project.

Highlights of
Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Framework establishes strategic and consistent approach for our
investments. We focus on fostering environmental value as well as improving the living standards and quality
of life of the communities we work with. In line with the Mission of creating mutually beneficial relationships
between the Company, stakeholders and the community, the Company has structured its CSR framework to
achieve this objective, which covers the following aspects:
Sound corporate activities
Provision of valuable goods and services for society
Respect for human beings
Protection of environment
Responsibility to society as a corporate citizen
Transparent operating activities
INVESTMENT IN EDUCATION
• As part of CSR and with a view to interacting with
educational institutions, AGTL has appointed
graduates of TEVTA for its assembly operations in
the plant. AGTL and TEVTA are working on a
programme to not only induct more graduates
but also utilize the joint facilities of TEVTA and AGTL
plant for customized training on operational
activities.
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• Merit scholarships are offered to students of the
University of Agriculture, Faisalabad and its
campus in Dera Ghazi Khan. Scholarships are
also offered to the Government Technical
Training Institute and Government College of
Technology in Dear Ghazi Khan for development
of local talent.
• Students of different Universities were given an
opportunity to visit the plant and to obtain an
insight of tractor manufacturing industry.

• We educate the farmers and his future
generations
on
techniques
of
Farm
Management with marketing programmes which
have been specially designed to minimize
overhead cost and to increase returns. Such
programmes are held with intermittence
throughout the country at the grass root level.

DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL TALENT
As a responsible corporate citizen, AGTL is
committed to development and supporting the
local community and local talent in what is
otherwise a less developed area of DGK.
• The Company has a programme for induction of
•
The Company has a programme for
induction of young diploma graduates from the
DGK Government College of Technology. Special
programmes are launched for customized
learning and development.
• The Company is proactive in providing internships
to students of various institutions of the country as
well as from other countries not only at the
manufacturing plant in Dera Ghazi Khan but at all
other locations.
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
• Tractor festivals, free service programmes are
held throughout the year to improve efficiency of
resource utilization.

RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
Al-Ghazi Tractors has developed a whole scale
industry
that
provides
employment
and
employment generating activities, provides welfare
services, marketing infrastructure and the impact of
these activities has had a huge impact on
transformation of the rural scene in the area. The
benefits of the activities and developments at
Al-Ghazi have trickled down to the rural masses.
Al-Ghazi has directly facilitated the process of
siphoning surplus labour from agriculture to the
manufacture sector and with its allied activities,
Al-Ghazi provides gainful employment opportunities
to the locals in fields as diverse as welding to
painting to finance and to information technology.
Besides lasting rural development pattern, Al-Ghazi
has concentrated on Human development with
training and scholarships and development of
infrastructure. Al-Ghazi has contributed to building a
self-reliant society with a scientific bent through a
system that trains our manpower for specific
requirements
in
technology,
engineering,
administration, management and marketing etc.
What was once a bucolic area is now an Industrial
hub, that has prevented the march of the desert with
its investments in horticulture, and which with its
expanding industrial throughput has contributed to
employment at the doorstep of the area thus
decelerating migration to urban centres.
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Certifications for Best Practices

Every year the company is audited for upkeep of its activities.
Documentation is a pre-requisite for this certification.
ISO certification is now valid upto 2021.
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AGTL was the founding member of the UN “Global Compact” initiative when it was
launched in December 2005.
The Company adheres to all the principles of the Global Compact with reference to
Human Rights, Labour, Environment and Ethical practices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AL-GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the annexed financial statements of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of the audit.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in
equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2020 and of the profit and other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following is the Key Audit Matter:
S. No.

Key Audit Matter

(i)

Inventories
(Refer note 4 to the annexed
financial statements)
The Company has significant
levels of inventories comprising
of
raw
material,
work-in-process and finished
goods. The Company makes
provision against inventory
items that are either obsolete
rejected or slow moving.
Significant
judgements,
assumptions and estimates are
involved to determine the
inventory at lower of cost and
net realizable values.
Given the level of significant
management judgements and
estimates
involved
we
considered
the
inventory
valuation a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit
We performed, amongst others, the following
audit procedures:
•

Obtained understanding in respect of
valuation methodology, the basis and
process for making the inventory
provision.

•

Obtained understanding of design,
implementation
and
operating
effectiveness of the key controls
management
has
established
for
inventory provision computations.

•

Checked that approval of board of
directors has been taken in respect of the
policy mechanism of making provision
against inventories.

•

Recalculated a sample of items included
within the inventory provision to ensure
accuracy of calculation and that
inventories are stated at the lower of cost
or net realizable value at the reporting
date by reviewing relevant documents
and sales prices of inventories
subsequent to the reporting date.

•

Assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made by the Company in
accordance with applicable accounting
and reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s reports thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
(a)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b)

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

(c)

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

(d)

zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980),
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established
under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Syed Muhammad Hasnain.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Dated: May 7th, 2021
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Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020

Note

ASSETS

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets
3
1,066,974
1,068,382
Deferred tax asset
14
111,756
87,090
Long-term loans		
781
2,437
Long-term deposits		
4,160
2,320
Employee benefit prepayments
29
36,197
				
1,219,868
1,160,229
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
4
2,004,517
2,786,893
Trade receivables
5
9,624
Loans and advances
6
86,561
93,216
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
7
24,925
7,398
Interest accrued
8
197
Other receivables
9
8,225
108,134
Taxation - payments less provision 		
157,786
347,462
Refunds due from the Government
10
1,450,847
773,334
11
Other financial assets
Cash and bank balances
12
230,518
189,093
				
3,963,576
4,315,154
						
TOTAL ASSETS		
5,183,444
5,475,383
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
13
General reserve		
Unappropriated profit		
				
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences		
Employee benefit obligations
29
				
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
15
Unclaimed dividend		
Short term financing
16

289,821
1,049,000
949,301
2,288,122

289,821
613,896
903,717

46,083
46,083

78,389
51,199
129,588

1,188,227
72,376
1,588,636

736,098
77,084
3,628,896

TOTAL LIABILITIES 		
		
COMMITMENTS
17

2,895,322

4,571,666

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES 		

5,183,444

5,475,383

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Director

Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Note

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Revenue from contracts with customers

18

11,935,172

13,992,388

Cost of sales
19
(9,164,670) (11,447,672)
						
Gross profit		
2,770,502
2,544,716
						
Distribution expenses
20
(221,904)
(263,946)
			
Administrative expenses
21
(322,675)
(296,763)
						
				
2,225,923
1,984,007
			
Other income
22
58,798
61,423
			
Other expenses
23
(211,025)
(298,443)
						
				
2,073,696
1,746,987
Finance costs
24
(145,789)
(398,463)
			
Profit before taxation		
1,927,907
1,348,524
						
Income tax expense
25
(578,250)
(370,872)
			
Profit for the year		
1,349,657
977,652
Earnings per share (Rupees) - Basic and diluted

26

23.28

16.87

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Note

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit for the year		

1,349,657

977,652

Other comprehensive Income / (loss:)		
		
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified
in profit or loss		
		
Remeasurements of post employment 		
benefit obligations 		
34,748
(52,188)
		
Total comprehensive income for the year		
1,384,405
925,464
			
The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Director

Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Note

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

27

2,879,065

3,049,064

Income tax paid		

(413,240)

(727,824)

Finance cost paid		

(234,928)

(359,256)

(Increase) / decrease in long-term deposits		

(1,840)

1,485

Employee benefit obligations paid		

(73,105)

(41,003)

benefits - compensated absences		

(32,306)

14,332

Net cash inflow from operating activities		

2,123,646

1,936,798

Additions to fixed assets		

(94,945)

(320,631)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets		

15,616

879

Return on bank deposits received		

40,420

17,582

Increase / (decrease) in long-term loans		

1,656

(1,546)

Net cash outflow from investing activities		

(37,253)

(303,716)

Dividend paid 		

(4,708)

(1,393,589)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		

2,081,685

239,493

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		

(3,439,803)

(3,679,296)

(1,358,118)

(3,439,803)

(Decrease) / increase in deferred staff

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

			
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

28

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up
capital

Revenue Reserves
General
reserve

Unappropriated
profit

Total

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at January 1, 2019
289,821
1,079,576
1,369,397
							
Total comprehensive income for the year					
ended December 31, 2019					
							
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2019
977,652
977,652
							
Other comprehensive loss for the year					
ended December 31, 2019
(52,188)
(52,188)
			
925,464
925,464
							
Transactions with the owners recorded directly in equity					
		
Final dividend @ Rs. 9 per share			
		
for the year ended December 31, 2018
(521,681)
(521,681)
							
Interim dividend @ Rs. 15 per share 					
for the year ended December 31, 2019
(869,463)
(869,463)
					
(1,391,144) (1,391,144)
							
Balance as at January 1, 2020
289,821
613,896
903,717
							
Total comprehensive income for the year					
ended December 31, 2020
							
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2020
1,349,657
1,349,657
							
Other comprehensive income for the year					
ended December 31, 2020
34,748
34,748
			
1,384,405
1,384,405
							
Transfer of unappropriated profit to general reserve
1,049,000
(1,049,000)
							
Balance as at December 31, 2020
289,821
1,049,000
949,301
2,288,122
The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Director

Chief Financial Officer

Notes to and Forming Part of The Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
1.

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act,
2017) as a public limited company in June, 1983 and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The registered office of the Company is situated at ‘Tractor House, Plot No. 102-B, 16th East Street, Off
Korangi Road, Phase I, D.H.A, Karachi’. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of agricultural tractors, generators, implements and spare parts and providing irrigation solutions for
agriculture.			
The Company is a subsidiary of Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC, U.A.E.		
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.				

1.2

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company’s business units, including plant are
as under:				
-

The registered office of the Company is situated at Tractor House, 102-B, 16th East Street, DHA Phase
I, Off. Korangi Road		
- The assembling plant of the Company is situated at Sakhi Sarwar Road, P.O. Box 38, Dera Ghazi Khan
- The marketing centres of the Company are situated at:			
10km Sheikhpura Road, Lahore		
			
Plot No. 20, Industrial Estate, Near Mill No, 4, Multan			
Plaza No. 4, 2nd Floor, Sector A, Jinnah Boulevard (East), DHA Phase II, Islamabad		
Abad Lakha, Shikarpur Road, Sukkur		
1.3

Impact of COVID-19 on the Financial Statements
The spread of the COVID-19 pandemic (the virus) in the second quarter of the financial year has resulted
in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain the virus, such as travel bans and restrictions,
quarantines and shutdowns. Consequently, the economic conditions have been increasingly volatile.
The Company activated its response plan accordingly which included prioritizing the health and safety
of its employees and dealers while maintaining business continuity and shutting down its plant for a
period of 20 days from March 27, 2020 to April 15, 2020 in order to comply with directives issued by the
provincial government.			
The Company has assessed that there is no material impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities or items of income and expenses as required under the relevant accounting and
reporting standards. 			

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES		
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.					

2.1

Basis of preparation			

2.1.1

Statement of compliance			
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:
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-

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

		Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
2.1.2

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The matter involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are provision for taxation and provision for staff retirement benefit.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and
other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. There were no significant judgements involved in the application of Company’s
accounting policies. The management has made the following estimates which are significant to the
financial statements:			

i. Employee benefit obligations			
				
		The Company has made certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statement
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of planned assets, based on
actuarial valuation.
ii.

Current and deferred income taxes		

		In making the estimates for income taxes payable by the Company, management considers current
income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain cases issued in the past. Where
the final outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax provision in the period in which such final outcome is determined. Deferred taxes are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the statement of financial position date.
		
iii. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets		
		Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern flow of economic benefit are
based on the recommendation of technical teams of the Company. Further, the Company reviews
the internal and external indicators for possible impairment of assets on an annual basis. Any change
in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property,
plant and equipment (note 3) and intangible assets (note 3.3) with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge, amortisation charge and impairment.
iv. Provisions			
				
		Provisions are considered, among others, for legal matters, disputed indirect taxes and warranty
obligations where a legal or constructive obligation exists at the statement of financial position’s date
and reliable estimate can be made of the likely outcome. The nature of these costs is such that
judgement is involved in estmating the timing and amount of cashflows.
v. Inventories			
Estimates with respect to obsolete and slow moving inventories are based on the management’s
assessment on aged based analysis regarding their future usability.		
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2.1.3

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements		
a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are effective but not relevant		

		

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards
which are mandatory for accounting periods which began on January 1, 2020. However, these do
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statement.		

b) Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standard that are not yet
effective
		

The certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2020 are considered not to be relevant for the Company’s financial statements
and hence have not been detailed here.		

c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are not yet effective
		

The new standard, certain amendments and interpretation that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 are considered not to be relevant for the Company’s
financial statements and hence have not been detailed here.

2.2

Overall valuation policy			

2.3

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise
disclosed in the accounting policy notes.			
						
Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation except freehold land and
capital work-in-progress which are stated at cost. 		
The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease. Depreciation on all other assets is
charged to statement of profit or loss applying straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset less
residual value is written off over its estimated useful life. The useful life of the assets as estimated by the
management is as follows:			
		
- Leasehold land		99 years
- Building		40 years
- Plant and machinery		10 years
- Furniture and fixtures		4 - 10 years
- Office equipment		10 years
- Computer hardware
3 years		
- Vehicles
4 years		
- Factory equipments and tools 		10 years
- Intangible assets
3 years		
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each date of
statement of financial position.			
Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.
						
Gains and losses on disposal / retirement of fixed assets are included in statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

					
Impairment			

2.5

The carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are
written down to their recoverable amount and the resulting impairment is charged to statement of profit
or loss.					
						
Loans, deposits and other debts		
These are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.			

2.6

Taxation		
Current
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits available, if any, in accordance with the prevailing income tax laws.
Deferred
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax
liability is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. 		

2.7

Inventories			
These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on moving average
method except for stock-in-transit which is valued at invoice value plus other charges incurred
thereon.					
Cost of finished goods includes prime cost and appropriate portion of manufacturing expenses.
							
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.		
Stores and spares are valued at average cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charges incurred thereon.		

2.8

Trade receivables			
Trade receivables are valued at invoice value, being the fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Refer note 2.22 for a description of the Company’s impairment policies.		

2.9

Cash and cash equivalents			
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. For
the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, cheques, demand
drafts in hand and balances with banks on current, PLS savings and deposit accounts and short term
borrowings under mark-up arrangements.
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2.10

Staff retirement benefits
(i) Defined contribution plan 		

		

The Company also operates an approved contributory provident fund for its permanent employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at
the rate of 10% of basic salary.		

(ii) Defined benefit plan
		
The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees.
The scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will receive on retirement
subject to a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme. 		
		

Contributions to the gratuity scheme are based on actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial
valuation of the scheme was carried out as at December 31, 2020 using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. 			

		

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in
which they occur.

		

Past-ser vice costs are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

2.11

Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences		
The Company accounts for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leave
in the period in which the leave is earned. The liability recognised in respect of compensated absences
is based on employees last drawn salary.		

2.12

Trade and other payables			
Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
received. These are subsequently measured at amortised cost.		

2.13

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.		

2.14

Warranty obligations			
The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or replace products under
warranty at the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the statement
of profit or loss when the sale is recognised.		

2.15

Foreign currencies			
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the
rates of exchange approximating to those prevailing at the date of statement of financial position.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.			
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2.16

Revenue from contracts with customers		
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control over the goods transfers to the
customer that is when the customer has the ability to control the use of the transferred goods provided
and generally derive their remaining benefits and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the product. It is measured at the transaction price which the Company
expects to be entitled to and represents the amount of goods supplied, after netting of discounts,
returns and value added taxes.
Return on deposits and investments is recognised on accrual basis.		

2.17

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.
			
Borrowings and their costs			
Borrowings are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of the consideration received together
with the associated transaction cost. Subsequently, these are recognised at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these
are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Borrowings payable within next twelve months are classified as current liabilities.

2.18

Dividend distribution			
Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognised as liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividend is declared / approved.		

2.19

Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Initial Recognition			

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given
or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be.
				
Classification of financial assets		
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:		
-

at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),		
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or			
at amortised cost.			

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of
instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business models for managing
the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:
						
- the financial assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and 			
-

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.		

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:
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-

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cashflows and selling the financial assets; and			

-

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.		

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.		
2.20

Classification of financial liabilities		
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:
-

at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), or			
at amortised cost.			

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL
(such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at
FVTPL.
2.21

Subsequent measurement			
(i) Financial assets at FVTOCI
Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss).		

(ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost			
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.		
			
(iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL		
		 Financial assets and liabilities initially carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and
transaction costs are expressed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.		
		

Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated
with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss).
Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.
		
2.22
Impairment of financial asset
The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured
at amortised cost at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following, which are measured at
12 months ECLs:			
-

bank balances for whom credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument has not increased since the inception.

-

employee receivables.			

-

other short term receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since inception.
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Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.
				
The Company considers a financial asset in default when it is more than 30 days past due.
Life time ECLs are the ECLs that results from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12 month ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.		
ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract and cash flows that the Company expects receive).		
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
2.23

Derecognition			
(i) Financial assets			
The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated
risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment
in a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an
investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to statement of changes in equity.

(ii) Financial liabilities
		 The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial
liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.			
2.24

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.			
					
								
3.
FIXED ASSETS
Note
2020
2019
(Rupees in ‘000)

								
Property, plant and equipment			
Operating assets
3.1
788,937
837,935
								
Capital work-in-progress
3.2
275,878
226,500
				
1,064,815
1,064,435
								
Intangible assets
3.3
2,159
3,947
				
1,066,974
1,068,382
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3.1

Operating assets
Land
Freehold

Lease hold

Building
on
on lease
freehold
hold land
land

Net carrying value basis
Year ended December 31, 2020

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
(Rupees in ‘000)

Plant and
machinery

Computer
hardware

Vehicles

Factory
equipment
and tools

Total

Opening net book value
4,334
73,417
340,452
156,016
147,926
35,383
7,287
59,677
13,443
837,935
Additions
3,135
5,510
4,459
7,159
19,415
5,310
44,988
Disposals 					
Cost 		
2,956
3,320
501
23,027
948
30,752
Accumulated depreciation
(2,062)
(2,269)
(481)
(10,350)
(751)
(15,913)
			
894
1,051
20
12,677
197
14,839
Depreciation charge
(824)
(10,830)
(4,522)
(24,411)
(5,627)
(5,090)
(25,477)
(2,366)
(79,147)
													
Closing net book value
4,334
72,593
329,622
154,629
128,131
33,164
9,336
40,938
16,190
788,937
Gross carrying value basis 									
At December 31, 2020 											
Cost 		
4,334
81,599
433,218
182,719
422,975
58,555
37,647
135,893
34,411 1,391,351
Accumulated depreciation
(9,006)
(103,596)
(28,090)
(294,844)
(25,391)
(28,311)
(94,955)
(18,221) (602,414)
											
Net book value
4,334
72,593
329,622
154,629
128,131
33,164
9,336
40,938
16,190
788,937
									
Net carrying value basis 											
Year ended December 31, 2019 											
											
Opening net book value
4,334
74,242
216,969
159,810
132,940
30,365
6,278
72,508
9,847
707,293
Additions
132,254
685
39,528
10,268
5,784
14,888
5,924
209,331
			
Disposals 									
Cost 		
941
822
673
4,371
137
6,944
Accumulated depreciation
(937)
(666)
(670)
(4,371)
(82)
(6,726)
			
4
156
3
55
218
Depreciation charge
(825)
(8,771)
(4,479)
(24,538)
(5,094)
(4,772)
(27,719)
(2,273)
(78,471)
													
Closing net book value
4,334
73,417
340,452
156,016
147,926
35,383
7,287
59,677
13,443
837,935
													
Gross carrying value basis 											
At December 31, 2019 											
Cost 		

4,334

81,599

433,218

179,584

420,421

57,416

30,989

139,505

30,049

1,377,115

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

4,334

(8,182)
73,417

(92,766)
340,452

(23,568)
156,016

(272,495)
147,926

(22,033)
35,383

(23,702)
7,287

(79,828)
59,677

(16,606)
13,443

(539,180)
837,935

3.1.1 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:		
		
		 Location
Usage
Total Area (acres)
		 Sakhi Sarwar Road, P.O. Box 38,
		 Dera Ghazi Khan
Assembling plant / staff colony
90
		 Plot No. 20, Industrial Estate,
		 Near Mill No, 4, Multan

Marketing centre

10

		 10km Sheikhpura Road, Lahore

Marketing centre

1.86

		 Tractor House, 102-B, 16th East Street,
		 DHA Phase I, Off. Korangi Road, Karachi

Head office

0.18

3.1.2 The details of operating assets sold, having net book value in excess of Rs 500,000 are as follow:
Description

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Book
value

Sale
proceeds

Gain / (loss)

Mode of
disposal

Particulars of
purchaser

(Rupees in ‘000)

Plant and Machinery			
725
157
568
291
(277)
										
Vehicles		 				
21,165
8,488
12,677
12,677
													

Full and Final Mr.Shahid Hussain
Settlement
- Ex CEO		
Full and Final Mr.Shahid Hussain
Settlement
- Ex CEO
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3.2

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
2020
Balance
as at
January 1,
2020

Additions Note
3.2.1

Transfers

2019
Balance
as at
December
31, 2020

Balance
as at
January 1,
2019

Additions
during
the year

Transfers

Balance
as at
December
31, 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Civil works				
Plant and machinery
Advances to suppliers
Total						
3.2.1

3.3

115,754
77,272
33,474
226,500

31,482
793
56,929
89,204

- 147,236 67,555 89,348
(6,352) 71,713
5,190 77,272
(33,474) 56,929 45,054 33,474
(39,826) 275,878 117,799 200,094

(41,149) 115,754
(5,190) 77,272
(45,054) 33,474
(91,393) 226,500

This includes expenditure incurred mainly in respect of construction of Quality Lab in Dera Ghazi Khan
Marketing Office.
							
Note
2020
2019
(Rupees
in
‘000)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Net carrying value basis

		

Opening net book value		

3,947

3,712

		

Additions		

577

2,599

		

Amortisation		

(2,365)

(2,364)

		

Closing net book value		

2,159

3,947

Gross carrying value basis
		

Cost		

16,389

15,811

		

Accumulated amortisation		

(14,230)

(11,864)

		

Net book value		

2,159

3,947

		

Average remaining useful life in years		

0.8

1.7

4

INVENTORIES

Raw materials and components – including
		 in transit Rs. 243.49 million			
		 (2019: Rs. 9.6 million) - Notes 4.1 		
1,218,050
Less: Provision for obsolescence		
(323,952)
				
894,098

2,255,809
(283,699)
1,972,110

Work-in-process		

550,987

125,256

Stores and spares		
Less: Provision for obsolescence		
				

42,128
(20,553)
21,575

35,965
(5,231)
30,734

Finished goods – tractors, generators and implements		
Less: Provision for obsolescence		
				

528,303
(3,053)
525,250

656,225
(7,268)
648,957

Trading stock – spare parts and implements 		
Less: Provision for obsolescence		
				
				

12,607
12,607
2,004,517

10,346
(510)
9,836
2,786,893

4.1
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5

TRADE RECEIVABLES

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Unsecured		
Less: Provision against doubtful receivables		
				
5.1
The age analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2,157
(2,157)
-

20,598
(10,974)
9,624

Not yet due		
6 to 12 months		
More than 1 year		
				

2,157
2,157

7,944
11,665
989
20,598

3,425
83,136
86,561

4,240
88,976
93,216

6.

LOANS AND ADVANCES – considered good

Loans to employees
6.1
Advances to suppliers for goods and services 		
				
6.1

These represent current portion of interest free loans given to employees under employee loan schemes
to facilitate purchase of domestic appliances and motor cycles. The said loans are repayable over a
period of 24 to 36 months and are secured against provident fund balances.

7.

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Prepayments		
24,773
5,392
Other deposits		
152
2,006
				
24,925
7,398
8.
INTEREST ACCRUED				
Mark-up accrued on bank deposits		
9.

197

-

OTHER RECEIVABLES				

Due from Workers’ Profits Participation Fund
9.1
1,194
16,084
Receivable from CNH Industrial N.V.
9.2
4,632
4,632
Discount receivable
9.3
18
27,843
Claims from suppliers
9.4
2,152
59,319
Others 		
229
256
			
8,225
108,134
9.1
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund				
At beginning of the year		
Allocation for the year 		
				

16,084
(103,780)
(87,696)

9,385
(72,890)
(63,505)

Less: Amount paid during the year		
				

88,890
1,194

79,589
16,084

9.2

This represents receivable from related party, CNH Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.) against
reimbursement of clearing, forwarding and transportation charges. The said receivable is outstanding
for more than 1 year.			

9.2.1

The maximum aggregate due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
4.63 million.			

9.3

These represent rebate provided by supplier on purchase volumes achieved under the agreement
during the year.			

9.4

These represent net claims receivable from suppliers, against rejected stock imported during the year.
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10.

REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT				
Note
2020
2019
(Rupees in ‘000)

Sales tax		
1,497,934
788,369
Less: Provision for Sales Tax
10.1
(47,087)
(15,035)
				
1,450,847
773,334
Special excise duty
10.2
				
1,450,847
773,334
					
10.1
During the year the Company has provided Rs. 32.05 million against sales tax claims having uncertain
recovery.		
Note
2020
2019
						
(Rupees
in
‘000)
		
10.2
Balance as at January 1		
132,647
148,502
Write offs		
(15,855)
Provisions		
(132,647)
(132,647)
Balance as at December 31		
Special Excise Duty was levied on tractor components through Finance Act 2008 from
July 2007 at the rate of 1% of the invoice value, which was subsequently discontinued
in June 2011. This 1% was refundable in the same manner as normal sales tax refunds.
Due to non-routine processing of the SED refunds the outstanding balance kept accumulating to the
tune of Rs. 263 million till September 2013.
The matter was then taken up with the Federal Tax Ombudsman (FTO), and an appeal in this regard was filed.
FTO decided the matter in the Company’s favor and directed FBR to process the unprocessed claim. Certain
claims were processed and refund payment order (RPO) of Rs. 118 million was issued till December 2014.
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company re-assessed its assessment for
recovery of Special excise duty recoverable since 2008 and after due consideration on a prudent
basis a provision of Rs 132.6 million has been created against balance for special excise duty.
Note
2020
2019
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 			
(Rupees
in
‘000)
Investment
		 Held at amortised cost - Certificate of Investment		
49,300
49,300
		 Less: Provision for impairment
11.1
(49,300)
(49,300)
				
11.

11.1

This represents investment in Certificate of Investment (COI) of Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (SPLCL)
which matured in January 2009, however, encashment proceeds were not received due to liquidity
problem of SPLCL. The Board of Directors filed a winding-up petition against SPLC in Sindh High Court for
recovery of the said outstanding amount and appointed M/s Saiduddin and Co. for the said purpose.
In 2018, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with SPLC through The High Court and
accordingly, petition was disposed off by the High Court. It had been agreed that SPLC will pay the
outstanding amount within 9 months of the settlement agreement.		
During the current year, the Company has received nil amount (2019: Rs. 3.5 million) from SPLC and
are in consultation with their Legal Counsel for further action.

Note
2020
2019
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
		
(Rupees in ‘000)
With banks on			
- Current accounts		
75,923
73,317
- PLS savings and deposit accounts
12.1
120,597
76,458
Cash in hand		
816
401
Demand drafts in hand		
33,182
38,917
				
230,518
189,093

12.
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12.1

At December 31, 2020, the mark-up rates on PLS savings and deposit accounts range from 2.84% to
5.5% per annum (2019: 6.75% to 11.25% per annum).

13.

SHARE CAPITAL

13.1

Authorised share capital
120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each
(2019: 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each)		

13.2

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

600,000

600,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each
2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

4,500,000
4,500,000
Shares allotted for
			
consideration paid in cash 		
53,464,201 53,464,201
Shares allotted as
			
bonus shares 		
57,964,201 57,964,201 				
13.3

14.

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

22,500

22,500

267,321
289,821

267,321
289,821

As at December 31, 2020, Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC, U.A.E., the holding company, and CNH
Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.), an associated company, held 50%, i.e., 28,992,705 (2019:
28,992,705) and 43%, i.e., 25,022,379 (2019: 25,022,379) shares of Rs. 5 each respectively.
							
Note
2020
2019
		
(Rupees in ‘000)
DEFERRED TAX ASSET		

Credit / (debit) balance arising on account of
		 - accelerated tax depreciation allowances		
(72,357)
(69,579)
		 - deferred staff benefits -				
		
compensated absences 		
13,364
22,733
		 - provision for impairment on investment		
14,297
14,297
		 - provision for slow moving inventories		
73,231
54,859
		 - provision for doubtful receivables		
625
3,182
		 - provision for Sales Tax		
13,655
4,362
		 - provision others		
20,437
19,234
		 - provision warranty		
10,036
		 - provision for special excise duty		
38,468
38,002
				
111,756
87,090
15.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			
Creditors
15.1
270,351
32,811
Accrued liabilities 		
424,653
326,245
Accrued markup		
15,025
105,988
Customers’ and dealers’ advances - unsecured		
123,304
43,683
Deposits
15.2
69,079
71,132
Taxes deducted at source 		
25,687
17,860
Workers’ Welfare Fund		
40,986
33,576
Royalty payable to CNH Industrial N.V.
- associated company		
106,147
50,612
Provision for warranty services
15.3
34,607
Others 		
78,388
54,191
				
1,188,227
736,098
15.1

These include amount payable to a related party, CNH Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.), amounting
to Rs. 17.74 million against purchases made in current year.		
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15.2

These includes amount received from customers / dealers of the Company as a security deposit with
reference to the contracts. As per the requirements of section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017, these
deposits are not utilizable for the purpose of business and are kept in separate bank account.

15.3

Provision for warranty services:			
Note
2020
2019
		
(Rupees in ‘000)
Balance as at Janauary 1, 2020		
Recognised during the year		
46,873
29,286
Expenses against provision		
(12,266)
(29,286)

					

Balance as at December 31, 2020		

34,607

-

					

16.

SHORT TERM FINANCING - under
mark up / profit arrangement

					

Islamic Finances
16.1. & 16.3.
Conventional Finances
16.2. & 16.3.
				

1,521,967
66,669
1,588,636

1,127,639
2,501,257
3,628,896

16.1

The facility for running musharkah available from banks amounted to Rs. 2.5 billion (2019: 2.5 billion) out
of which the amount unavailed at the year end was Rs 0.98 billion (2019: Rs 0.37 billion). Rates of profit
ranges from three month KIBOR plus 0.05% (2019: one months KIBOR plus 0.3%) to one month KIBOR
plus 0.5% (2019: three months KIBOR plus 0.2%) per annum.

16.2

The facility for running finance available from banks amounted to Rs. 2.0 billion (2019: 2.0 billion) out
of which the amount unavailed at the year end was Rs 1.93 billion (2019: Rs 0.5 billion). Rates of
mark-up ranges from three month KIBOR plus 0.05% (2019: one months KIBOR plus 0.25%) to one
month KIBOR plus 0.5% (2019: three months KIBOR plus 0.25%) per annum.		

16.3

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2020 amounted to Rs.
2.45 billion (2019: Rs. 2.75 billion) out of which unutilised balance at year end amounted to Rs. 2.04
billion (2019: Rs 2.42 billion).
The above arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation of selected plant and machinery and paripassu charge against hypothecation of Company’s present and future current assets.

17.

COMMITMENTS
Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2020 amounted to Rs. 151.15
million (2019: Rs. 199.53 million).

18.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS				
2020
Tractors

Trading
goods and
others

2019
Total

Tractors

Trading
goods and
others

Total

(Rupees in ‘000)

Local sales 			
Export sales					
							
Less:
- Commission
and incentives
- Sales tax		
							
							
18.1
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12,583,533
91,011
12,674,544

(224,053)
(597,217)
(821,270)
11,853,274

105,647 12,689,180
91,011
105,647 12,780,191

14,831,560
13,516
14,845,076

159,328 14,990,888
13,516
159,328 15,004,404

(1,322)
(225,375)
(269,169)
(22,427)
(619,644)
(732,135)
(23,749)
(845,019) (1,001,304)
81,898 11,935,172 13,843,772

(2,847)
(272,016)
(7,865)
(740,000)
(10,712) (1,012,016)
148,616 13,992,388

These financial statements do not include disclosure relating to IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” as the
Company is considered to be a single operating segment.
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19.

COST OF GOODS SOLD

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Manufactured goods
Raw materials and components consumed		
		 Salaries, wages and benefits		
		 Charge for defined benefit plan		
		 Charge for defined contribution plan		
		 Stores and supplies		
		 Royalty and technical fee		
		 Insurance 		
		 Depreciation		
		 Fuel, power and electricity		
		 Inwards freight and transportation		
		 Repairs and maintenance		
		 Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment		
		 Rent, rates and taxes		
		 Communication		
		 Printing and stationery		
		 Others		
Opening stock of work-in-process		
Closing stock of work-in-process		
Cost of goods manufactured		
Opening stock of finished goods		
Closing stock of finished goods		
				
Trading goods		
Opening stock		
Purchases		
				
Closing stock		
				
				

8,756,920
287,756
9,055
5,383
111,115
101,197
3,921
37,225
51,297
3,219
27,147
5,287
1,004
352
1,041
7,762
125,256
(550,987)
8,983,950
648,957
(525,250)
9,107,657

10,361,257
332,019
7,400
5,949
140,174
119,277
2,926
34,568
56,027
5,534
111,518
7,487
1,112
578
2,999
9,811
108,584
(125,256)
11,181,964
822,097
(648,957)
11,355,104

9,836
59,784
69,620
(12,607)
57,013
9,164,670

8,086
94,318
102,404
(9,836)
92,568
11,447,672

20.
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES				
					
Salaries, wages and benefits		
61,104
74,760
Charge for defined benefit plan		
2,751
2,221
Charge for defined contribution plan		
2,166
2,180
Insurance 		
159
149
(Reversal) / provision against doubtful receivables		
(8,817)
10,974
Depreciation / amortisation		
10,784
10,754
Electricity		
1,948
1,878
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment		
13,123
13,295
Repairs and maintenance		
472
5,007
Rent, rates and taxes		
2,546
11,800
Communication		
1,988
2,374
Advertisement and promotion		
8,095
18,664
After sales expense		
12,142
5,892
Warranty expense		
46,873
29,286
Freight charges		
61,417
70,238
Legal and professional charges		
1,887
127
Printing and stationery		
2,222
3,028
Others		
1,044
1,319
				
221,904
263,946
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21.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits		
Charge for defined benefit plan		
Charge for defined contribution plan		
Insurance 		
Depreciation		
Electricity		
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment		
Repairs and maintenance		
Rent, rates and taxes		
Communication		
Auditors’ remuneration
21.1
Advertising		
Legal and professional charges		
Printing and stationery		
Donation
21.2
Others		
				
21.1
Auditors’ remuneration

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

203,153
8,654
5,818
547
33,503
7,143
4,450
1,163
8,529
12,132
3,449
1,435
21,865
7,376
127
3,331
322,675

192,510
8,791
7,311
355
35,514
6,948
9,363
1,527
1,881
12,305
3,207
1,770
5,611
6,379
236
3,055
296,763

Audit fee		

1,800

1,800

Fee for limited review of half yearly financial statements		
Certification for compliance with Code of
Corporate Governance, certifications for
government and other agencies and other services		
Out of pocket expenses		
				

400

400

490
759
3,449

490
517
3,207

40,618

17,581

14,822
777
2,581
18,180
58,798

32,106
661
3,500
7,575
43,842
61,423

21.2

None of the Directors or their spouses had any interest in the donee.

22.

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return on PLS savings and deposit accounts		
Income from other assets
Scrap sales		
Profit on disposal of fixed assets		
Discount received Recovery from other financial assets		
Others		
				
				
23.
OTHER EXPENSES

Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 		
103,780
72,890
Workers’ Welfare Fund		
43,900
36,378
Provision against slow moving and obsolete inventories		
63,345
189,175
				
211,025
298,443
24.
FINANCE COSTS				
				
Bank charges and commission 		
1,824
4,113
Mark up on islamic financing		
98,529
263,903
Mark up on running finance		
45,436
130,447
				
145,789
398,463
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25.
INCOME TAX EXPENSE		
		
Current 		
- for the year		
- prior year		
Deferred		
				
		
25.1
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit:		
		
Accounting profit before tax		

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

594,611
8,307
(24,668)
578,250

493,251
(4,850)
(117,529)
370,872

1,927,902

1,348,524

Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2019: 29%)		
559,092
391,072
Effect of final tax on exports		
(3,633)
(236)
Tax credit		
(2,679)
Prior year tax		
8,307
(4,850)
Others		
14,484
(12,435)
				
578,250
370,872
		
26.
EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted		
		
Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders		
1,349,657
977,652
		
Weighted average number of shares 		
in issue during the year (in thousand)		
57,964
57,964
		
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)		
23.28
16.87
		
26.1
A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 which would have any effect on the earnings
per share if the option to convert exercised.		
			
2020
2019
27.
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS		
(Rupees
in
‘000)
		
Profit before income tax		
1,927,907
1,348,524
Add / (less): Adjustment for non-cash charges
		 and other items		
Depreciation and amortisation		
81,512
80,835
Retirement benefits charge		
20,460
18,412
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 		
(777)
(661)
Return on bank deposits		
(40,618)
(17,581)
Mark up on running finance		
143,965
394,350
				
2,132,449
1,823,879
		
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes		
Decrease / (increase) in current assets		
		 Inventories		
782,376
720,695
Trade receivables		
9,624
46,982
Loans and advances 		
6,655
39,121
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments		
(17,527)
35,907
Other receivables
		
99,909
(95,170)
Refunds due from the Government		
(677,513)
1,023,872
				
203,524
1,771,407
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 		
Trade and other payables		
543,092
(546,222)
				
746,616
1,225,185
				
2,879,065
3,049,064
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28.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
		
Cash in hand		
		
At banks in		
- Current accounts 		
- PLS savings and deposit accounts		
			
		
Demand drafts in hand		
Short term financing - note 16 		
				
29.

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

816

401

75,923
120,597
196,520

73,317
76,458
149,775

33,182
(1,588,636)
(1,358,118)

38,917
(3,628,896)
(3,439,803)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS				

				

29.1

As stated in note 2.11 (i) the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its
permanent employees. The scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme. Actuarial
valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuations of the scheme was
carried out as at December 31, 2020.

29.2

Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust Act, 1882; the
Companies Act, 2017; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the trust deeds. Responsibility for
governance of the Plan, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, lies with the Board
of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.

29.3

				

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2020 was carried out using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. Details of the Fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

							
2020
2019
29.4
Statement of financial position reconciliation as at December 31			
(Rupees in ‘000)
					
		Present value of defined benefit obligation		
207,226
258,137
		 Fair value of plan assets		
(243,423)
(206,938)
				
(36,197)
51,199
29.5
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation				
		 Obligation as at January 1		
258,137
180,396
		 Current service cost		
20,393
18,750
		 Interest expense		
24,274
21,333
		 Remeasurement on obligation 		
(39,065)
50,016
		 Benefits paid		
(56,513)
(12,358)
		 Obligation as at December 31		
207,226
258,137
						
29.6
Movement in the fair value of plan assets				
		 Fair value as at January 1		
206,938
158,794
		 Interest income		
24,210
21,671
		 Remeasurement on plan assets		
(4,317)
(2,172)
		 Employer contributions		
73,105
41,003
		 Benefits paid		
(56,513)
(12,358)
Fair value as at December 31		
243,423
206,938
				
29.7
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
		 Current service cost		
20,393
18,750
		 Interest expense - net		
64
(338)
				
20,457
18,412
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2020
2019
Remeasurement recognised in
(Rupees in ‘000)
other comprehensive income				
		
Experience losses 		
39,065
(50,016)
Remeasurement of fair value of plan assets		
(4,317)
(2,172)
29.8

Remeasurements		
34,748
(52,188)
			
29.9
Net recognised (asset) / liability				
			
Balance as at January 1		
51,199
21,602
Expense for the year 		
20,457
18,412
Employer contributions		
(73,105)
(41,003)
Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income		
(34,748)
52,188
Balance as at December 31		
(36,197)
51,199
29.10 Composition of plan assets:

2020
(Rupees in ‘000)

Term deposits
Others (include bank balance)
			

151,157
92,266
243,423

2019
(Rupees in ‘000)

%

62.10
37.90
100.00

122,559
84,379
206,938

%

58.71
41.29
100.00

29.11 Actuarial assumptions				
				
2020
2019
Expected rate of increase in salaries
		
		
- Management staff
		
- Short-term - 1 year		
9.75%
11.25%
		
- Long-term - more than 1 year		
9.75%
11.25%
		
- Non-management staff				
		
- Short-term - 1 year		
9.75%
11.25%
		
- Long-term - more than 1 year		
9.75%
11.25%
		 Discount factor used 		
9.75%
11.25%
29.12 Pre-Retirement mortality was assumed to be SLIC (2001-05) for males and females, as the case may
be, but rated down one year. 			
		
29.13 The Company ensures asset / liability matching by investing in short-term deposits and does not use
derivatives to manage its risk. 			
		
29.14 The expected return on plan assets has been determined by considering the expected returns available
on the assets underlying the current investment policy.
29.15 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions			
						
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in
Increase in
Decrease in
assumption
assumption
assumption

(Rupees in ‘000)

Discount rate at December 31
Future salary increases

1%
1%

(16,774)
8,631

7,781
(17,742)

If longevity increases by 1 year, the resultant decrease in obligation is insignificant.
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The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the gratuity liability recognised within the statement of financial position.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.		
2020

29.16 Historical information

2019

2018

2017

2016

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at December 31		
Present value of defined benefit obligation		 207,226 258,137 180,396 149,317 134,996
Fair value of plan assets		 (243,423) (206,938) (158,794) (139,310) (125,281)
(Surplus) / deficit		 (36,197) 51,199
21,602
10,007
9,715
Experience adjustments						
Gain / (loss) on obligation		
Loss on plan assets		
			

39,065
(4,317)
34,748

(50,016)
(2,172)
(52,188)

(15,719)
(5,183)
(20,902)

(2,694)
(6,763)
(9,457)

(8,188)
(492)
(8,680)

29.17 The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depend upon the asset
portfolio of the fund, at the beginning of the period.
29.18 As per actuarial advice, the Company is expected to contribute Rs.5.33 million towards gratuity fund in
2020 (2019: Rs. 21.9 million).
29.19 The weighted average duration of non-management employees is 32.35 years and of management
employees is 8.88 years.
29.20 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan.
At December 31, 2020

Less than
a year

Between 1
2 years

Between 2
5 years

Between 5
10 years

Over 10
years

Total

Retirement benefit plan

30,557

25,880

85,457

93,213

269,776

504,883

29.21 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.		
30.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30.1

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:
Relationship

Nature of transactions

i.

Dividend paid

Holding company

2020

2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

-

626,242

ii.
Associate company
			
			
			
			
iii.
Retirement benefit
		
funds
			
			

Dividend paid
Royalty paid
45,663
Royalty charge
101,197
Purchases of services
15,779
Purchases of goods
Contribution to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Staff Provident Fund
13,367
Contribution to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited		
Employees’ Gratuity Fund
73,105

510,457
127,907
119,277
7,745

iv.
		

Salaries and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits

149,598
13,349

Key management
personnel *

113,120
6,956

15,440
41,007

The outstanding balances of related parties as at December 31, 2020 are included in trade and other
payables and other receivables respectively.
*
30.2
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Key management personnel includes CEO, CFO and all Head of the Departments.

Following are the related parties including associated companies with whom the Company had
entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

S.
No.

1
2

Basis of
relationship

Company name

AI-Futtaim Industries Company (LLC)		
CNH Industrial N.v. (formerly CNH Global N.v.)		

Aggregate % of
sharholding

Parent
Associate

50.02%
43.17%

30.2.1 Al-Futtaim Industries Company (LLC) is a Company incorporated in Dubai.				
30.2.2 CNH Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.) is a Company incorporated in the Netherlands.
31.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits, to
the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:
Chief Executive

Director

Executives

2020
2019
2020
2019
2020
								
(Rupees in ‘000)
				
Managerial remuneration
32,761
42,622
9,642
13,303
19,743
Bonus			
11,371
2,329
House rent		
10,442
13,227
4,231
7,124
Utilities			
2,018
2,939
940
1,583
Retirement benefits
4,258
6,825
1,999
2,890
Leave passage
17,983
4,409
3,147
2,622
3,455
						
67,462
81,393
12,789
25,424
34,795
		
Number of persons
2
1
2
1
8

2019
30,021
4,571
10,714
2,381
5,157
4,084
56,928
9

-

The Chief Executive and Executives are also provided with Company maintained cars and are
entitled to medical benefits and club subscription in accordance with their entitlements.

-

Director is also provided with Company maintained car and furnished house in accordance with his
entitlements. Furthermore, the Director is entitled to other remuneration which is borne by the Parent
Company therefore, it is not included here.

-

Aggregate amount charged to statement of profit or loss for the year in respect of fee to director
was Rs. 2.06 million (2019: Rs. 2.38 million).

32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities by category and their respective maturities		
							
Interest / mark-up bearing
Non interest bearing
				
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
up to one
after one
up to one
after one
Sub-total
Sub-total
(i) FINANCIAL ASSETS
year
year
year
year

		
		
		

Loans and advances
Deposits
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

2020			
2019			

Total

120,597

-

120,597

3,425
229
109,921

781
4,160
-

4,206
4,160
229
109,921

4,206
4,160
229
230,518

120,597
76,458

-

120,597
76,458

113,575
126,755

4,941
4,757

118,516
131,512

239,113
207,970

-

-

-

963,643
72,376

-

963,643
72,376

963,643
72,376

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend

2020			
- 1,036,019
- 1,036,019 1,036,019
2019			
- 718,063
718,063 718,063
Off balance sheet items
Financial commitments:
Contracts for capital expenditure
						 151,147
Letters of credit and guarantee							 406,828
2020									
557,975
2019									 530,334
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The effective mark-up rates for the monetary financial assets are mentioned in respective notes to the
financial statements.			
				
Concentrations of credit risk

(ii)

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties
failed to perform as contracted. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 239.11 million (2019: Rs. 207.97
million) the financial assets exposed to the credit risk amount to Rs. 205.12 million (2019: Rs. 168.65
million) which mainly comprise of balances with banks.
			
The Company places surplus funds with various reputed banks having minimum credit ratings of A-1 as
assigned by credit rating agencies. The Company monitors its exposure to a single bank its ratings on
continuous basis.
The Company’s products are mainly sold against cash or demand drafts issued by Zarai Taraqiati Bank
Limited (ZTBL) and certain other commercial banks. Hence, the Company believes that it is not exposed
to credit risk against tractor sales. As of December 31, 2020, there is no impaired balance and the
carrying amount of trade receivables relates to independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default.			
Loans to employees are not exposed to any material credit risk and are secured against the retirement
benefits of the respective employees.
Other receivables are not exposed to any significant credit risk.
			
Deposits have been placed mainly with government institutions, hence exposed to no significant credit risk.
				
The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparts.
			
(iii)
Liquidity risk			
		
Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and balances with banks. As at December 31,
2020 there is no maturity mismatch between financial assets and liabilities that expose the Company
to liquidity risk.
(iv)

Market risk			
		
		
a) Foreign exchange risk
			

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions
with foreign undertakings. At December 31, 2020 trade and other payables exposed to foreign
currency risk amount to Rs.18.52 million (2019: Rs. 19.9 million).

			

The company imports raw materials and components in US Dollar and is exposed to Rupee /
US Dollar exchange risk. If the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 4% against US
Dollar with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower
/ higher by Rs. 524.48 million (2019: Rs. 182.76 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses / gains on settlement of US Dollar denominated trade payables.		
		
b) Interest rate risk			
		
		
			 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the
market interest rates. As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s interest bearing financial assets
amounted to Rs. 120.6 million (2019: Rs. 76.46 million) and had the interest rate varied by 100
basis points with all the other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have
been approximately higher / lower by Rs. 1.21 million (2019: Rs. 0.76 million).		
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(v)

Fair values of the financial instruments

The carrying values of all the financial instruments reflected in the financial statements approximate to
their fair values.
33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT			
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders.			

34.

PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

2020

2019

Plant capacity (single shift) - units 		

30,000

30,000

Actual production - units		

12,654

15,400

402

436

Actual production of tractors varies in line with the market demand.
35.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

35.1

Number of employees including contractual employees
at 31 December		

Average number of employees including contractual		
414
448
employees during the year
							
36.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS		
35.2

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 4th, 2021 have proposed a final cash dividend of
Rs. 21.39 per share amounting to Rs. 1,240 million ((2019: Rs. Nil per share amounting to Rs. Nil) subject
to approval of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further, the Board of Directors
resolved to transfer PKR 1,049 million from general reserves to unappropriated profit.
These financial statements do not include the effects of above appropriations, which will be accounted
for subsequent to the year end.
37.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE			
				
These financial statements were authorised for issue on May 4th, 2021 by the Board of Directors.

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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FAMCO ASSOCIATES (PVT) LTD.
8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery
Block 6, P.E.C.H.S.
Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi.

Date:

Dear Sirs,
ELECTRONIC CREDIT MANDATE FORM (MANDATORY)
I hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my bank account as detailed below:
Name of share-holder/certificate-holder

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Folio Number/CDC Account No.

: -------------------------------- Company/Entity: -------------------------------

Contact number

: --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Title of Bank Account

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

IBAN Number (see Note below)

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Name of Bank

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Bank branch name & full mailing address : ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------CNIC No. (copy attached)

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

NTN (in case of corporate entity)

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cell / Landline number

: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; I shall keep the
Company/Modaraba informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder/Certificate-holder’s Signature
Notes and Instructions:
Please provide complete IBAN Number (24 digits), after checking with your concerned branch to enable
electronic credit directly into your bank account.
The payment of cash dividend will be processed based on the account number alone. Company/Modaraba
will rely on t he account n umber a s per Shareholder/Certificate holder’s instructions a nd s hall n ot b e
responsible for any loss, damage, liability or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or
failure in performance of any of its obligations hereunder which is caused by incorrect payment instructions
and /or due to any event beyond the control of the Company/Modaraba.
Shareholders holding s hares in physical form m ust submit this f orm s eparately f or each C ompany/
Modaraba where they hold their shares/Modaraba Certificates quoting their folio number.
CDC shareholders are requested t o submit their D ividend Mandate d irectly to t heir broker
(participant)/CDC Investor Accounts Services. It is not required to file separate form for each Company.
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FORM OF PROXY
I / We___________________________________________________________________
of______________________________________________________________________
a member(s) of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited and holding ____________________________
ordinary shares, as per Register Folio _________________________________________
hereby appoint ___________________________________________________________
of______________________________________________________________________
or failing him_____________________________________________________________
of______________________________________________________________________
to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited to be held on 15 June 2021 at 04:00 PM through video-link arrangement.
Signed on this _______ day of _______, 2021 in the presence of:

1. Signature_____________________

2. Signature_____________________

Name _______________________

Name _______________________

Address______________________

Address______________________

CNIC or Passport No.___________

CNIC or Passport No.___________

Signature of
member(s)
across
Revenue Stamp
of Rs. 5/-

Important:

1. A m ember entitled to a ttend a G eneral M eeting entitled to appoint a p roxy t o attend and vote
instead of him. No person shall act as proxy (except for a corporation) unless he is entitled to be
present and vote in his own right.
2. The i nstrument appointing a proxy should be s igned b y the member o r by h is a ttorney duly
authorized in writing. If the member is a corporation its common seal (if any) should be affixed to
the instrument.
3. The proxies shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting.
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REGISTERED AND HEAD OFFICE
Tractor House, 102 -B, 16th East Street, DHA Phase I,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi.
Tel: 92 21 35318901-5 | Fax: 92 21 35660882
Email: agtl@alghazitractors.com | Website: www.alghazitractors.com

